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AGS Airports Limited

Strategic report

AGS Airports Limited (the “Company”) owns and operates three airports in the UK located in Glasgow, Aberdeen and
Southampton {{ogether the "Group”).

The financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with
items which are considered material in relation to the financial statements.

Management review

Passenger traffic trends
Passenger traffic for the year ended 31 December 2022 across the Group’s airports is analysed below:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021 Change
Passengers by airport (millions)
Aberdeen 20 1.1 77.9%
Glasgow §.5 2.1 213.8%
Southampton 0.7 0.3 138.6%
Total passengers’ 9.2 3.5 163.6%
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021 Change
Passengers by destination (millions)
United Kingdom 4.9 2.6 86.3%
International 4.3 0.9 395 4%
Total passengers’ 9.2 3.5 163.6%

' These figures have been calculated using un-rounded passenger numbers.

In the twelve months to 31 December 2022, the number of passengers increased by 164% to 9.2million, due to the increase
in traffic across the three aimports due to the ease of travel restrictions. At the end of 2022 passenger numbers had
recovered to 68% of pre-pandemic levels.

The Group's three airports have continued to operate throughout 2022 and have started to recover back to pre-pandemic
Ievels. Passenjers’ volumes in Q1 2022 continued to be adversely impacted by travel restrictions and UK lockdowns.
Aberdeen continues to benefit from strong performance in the cil and gas industry along with increased domestic iravel
across the three airporis. International fravel has started fo resume as the intemational borders were opened and the
testing regime was reduced.

The car parks and terminals across the Group's three airperts have been used for UK Government COVID-18 testing since
2020 until Q2 of 2022. Furthermore, the Group continued to partner with TAC Healthcare Group Lid to offer PCR Park and
Test to passengers who required this service. This revenue stream has continued throughout 2022 until July 2022 following
the easing of testing requirermeants.

Since the year end one significant event has impacted the current year operations of the group. On the 28th of January
2023 Flybe entered administration. Prior to administration Flybe constituted to 0.5% of the groups traffic. The group
continues to work with other airlines fo establish backfill arangements. Additionally, at Southampton work continues on
the runway extension that will enhance the passenger flight offerings from Southampton Airport.

Logking forward, the Group are expecting both domastic and international passenger volumes to continue to recover
towards pre-pandemic leveals.
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AGS Airports Limited

Strategic report {continued)

Financial review

The following financial review, based on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, provides commentary on the
performance of the three airports in the Group's operations, Airport Holdings NDH1 Limited and BAA Lynton Limited.

As restated”

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

£m £m

Revenue 166 86
Non-recurring’ 1 1
Adjusted revenue 167 B7
Adjusted operating costs? {119) (91)
Adjusted EBITDA® 48 €3]
Depreciation and amortisation (30) (32)
Total operating costs (149} (123)
Fair value (loss)gain on investment properties (6) 12
Operating profiti{loss) 1 (25)
Finance costs (net) (47) (42)
Loss before tax (36) (67)
Taxation 9 (36)
Loss for the year {27} {(103)

* See nole 26 for details regarding the restatement.

Non recurring revenue paid oul to a third party in relation to air navigation infrastructure (page 26)

Adjusted operating cosls are siated before depreciation, amoriisation and non-recurring items {page 28).

Adjusted EBITDA is earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amoHisation, certain re-measurements {pags 28) and non-recurring items (page 26).
Operating profit is stated bazed on non-adjusted revenue,

oW =

Adjusted revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 increased by 92% to £167million due to an increase in both
international and domestic passenger numbers following the relaxation of COVID-12 travel restrictions.

Adjusted operating costs increased by 31% as a result of increased passenger volumes and aircraft movements at the
Group's three airports.

The total tax credit recognised for the year ended 31 December 2022 was £9million (2021: £36miillion charge).

Non-recurring iterns

During 2022 £1mifiion (20621: £1million) was paid ouf to a third party in refation to air navigation infrastructure. This has
been accounted for as a debit to revenue as the initial revenue transaction from the third party was treated as non-recurring
revenue.

Further details are provided in note 3 of the financial statements.

Fair value movements on investment properties

Investment properties were valued at fair value by CBRE Limited, Chartered Surveyors. Investment properties comprise
mainly car parks and airside assets, The investment property valuation as at 31 December 2022 of £352million (2021:
£358million) resulted in a loss of £6million (2021: £12million gain).

Dividend
During the year the Company no paid dividends to AGS Airports Investments Limited (2021: £nil).

Investrment in modemn airport facilities

At Southampton following the favourable outcome of the judicial review in August 2022, the programme of construction
works to enable the runway exiension has commenced. Additional capital projects in the year included airfield pavement
reifing works, purchase of security search equipment and upgraded catering offering. Investment at Glasgow included
the ongoing programme of airfield pavement re-lifing works, installation of one-way security gate access at inlemational
and domestic arrivals and the purchase of enhanced security search equipment. Investment at Aberdeen included the
ongoing programme of airfield pavement re-ifing works, installation of enhanced security search equipment and the
purchase of airfield operational vehicles,

Pension scheme

At 31 December 2022, AGS Airports Limited's defined benefit pension scheme had a deficit of E6million (2021: £3.9million
surplus} as measured under International Accounting Standard (*IAS") 19 Employee Benefits (“IAS 19”). The scheme was
closed to future accrual with effect from 30 June 2019. The members of the scheme were thereafter entitied to participate
in the Group’s defined contribution pension plan.
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AGS Airports Limited

Strategic report {continued)

Going concern

In the year ended 31 December 2022 the Group has continued to build back from the Covid-19 pandemic, recovering overall
passengers 1o 68% of pre pandemic (2019) levels. Revenue has increased to £166million and operational expenditure
{including fair value loss on investment properties) was £155millon resulting in an operating profit of £11million, an increase
of £36million from the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors have worked to conserve cash in response to a high inflation environment and rising interest rates. The Group
entered into a new floating to fixed interest rate swap on 8 November 2022 thus reducing interest rate exposure on the
external debt. The Directors have also focussed on controlling operating expenditure, prioritising the capital investment
program, and have maintained unrestricted cash at E19million on 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021 £18million). The
Group continues to hold restricted cash of £33million (31 December 2021: £21million) to service its future 12 months interest
payments.

The Group finances its activities through funds generated from operations and has access to external debt and shareholders’
loan facilities. The external debt faciiities include covenants, a breach of which would result in the amounts drawn becoming
payable on demand.

On 18 June 2021 the Group completed negotiations with lenders regarding amending and extending its external debt facility
and the waiving of centain existing covenant tests on 30 June 2021, 31 December 2021, and 30 June 2022. Under the
amended and extended debt facility agreement the Group's debt of £757million will now mature in June 2024, interest rates
have been revised to Sterling overnight index rate (SONIA} plus a margin, the Group wili maintain a debt service reserve to
cover the future 12-month debt service requirements and revised covenant tests have been established, including a minimum
liquidity test which has beerr put in place and has not been waived. The Group’s shareholders also provided a further
£35million of equity, £35millioch of loans and a commitment to provide an additional £30million of equity callable to meet
cashflow requirements through to June 2024. The additional £30million of committed equity remains undrawn at 31
December 2022.

The Directors have performed a robust assessment of the Group’s forecasts and cash flows and its ability to meet its
obligations as they fall due over the period to 31 March 2024. In doing s0, they have reviewed current performance, industry
trends, financial projections, including our long-term business plan, and considered sensitivities to test the robustness of the
assumptions made. Those forgcasts and sensitivities have included the impact of Flybe Limited entering Administration on
28 January 2023 {note 25), a reduction to passenger numbers and an adjustment to macro-economic factors. Those
forecasts indicate that the Group can continue to oparate for the Going Concern period to 31 March 2024, The directors
have also considered a severe downside scenario and in doing so, believe that the Group should be able to manage its
business risks successfully. Under all scenarios the Group has sufficient liquidity and covenant headroom throughout the
going concern period.

The going concern assessment included a review of forecast profits, cash flow, liquidity, covenant compliance and a possible
downside scenario relating to liquidity and covenants. The directors have considered several options available to them fo
mitigate a liquidity issue should it arise. These include further cost saving initiatives and securing additional finance, if
available. The possible downside is not currently considered likely and shows sufficient liquidity and covenant headroom
throughout the going concem period.

The directors have also considered the ability of the Group to refinance its loans which mature on 18 June 2024, being just
outside of the going concermn period. The external debi facilities are expected to have an outstanding balance of £757 million
as at the maturity date of 18 June 2024, requiring full repayment upon maturity. The Directors are confident that new
financing facilities will be concluded o support the Group’s operational needs beyond June 2024. The Group’s resilience
thraugh Covid-19, strong recovery and posttive forecasts all provide the Directors with confidence in a successful refinancing,
However, as at the date of these financial statements the process of refinancing has not yet commenced therefore the
directors highlight that a material uncertainty exists at this time in respect of the Group’s ability to conclude new financing
facilities.

The directors believe that the Group should be able to manage its business risks successfully and the Group's forecasts and
projections show that the Group should be able to operate within the level of its available liquidity. Accordingly. the directors
continue lo adopt the going concem basis in preparing the annual report and financial statements, however, the matlers
described above result in the existence of a material uncertainly which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therafore the Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
notmal course of business.

Net debt and liguidity

The Group is funded by its shareholder companies and external debt. At 31 December 2022, the Group had payables due
1o its shareholders of £263million (2021: £246million), external debt of £757million (2021: £757million) and £52million (2024:
£39million) of cash at bank. The undrawn headroom under sharehelders’ subsequent eguity commitment was £30million at
31 December 2022 (2021: £30million).

The Group's debt facility matures in June 2024.
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AGS Airports Limited

Strategic report (continued}

Accounting and reporting policies and procedures

The consolidated results in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 are presented in accordance with
international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The Group's accounling
policies and areas of significan! accounting judgements and estimates are detailed within the Group financial statements.
The Company financial statements are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (“FRS”) 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework” (“FRS 1017).

Statement under section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006 — Duty to promote the success of the Company

Farh of the personc who is a dircclor &l e Jate of dpproval of this Annual report conhims that they have complied with
the requirements of section 172(1), lo act in a way hefshe considers, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the
success of the Group for the benefit of its members as a whole. The directors have considered the following factors:-

Decision making

The Board of Directors is responsible for, amongst other things, developing, reviewing and refreshing medium and long
term business strategies, policies and developrent plans, and ensuring their delivery and reviewing the prin-ipal risks and
risk management framework. Decisions taken by the Board of Directors and Executive Committee follow exiensive review
and consideration regarding stakeholder impact, as well as the need to maintain high standards of businez= conduct and
the need to act fairly.

Durint 2022 principal decisions included the Group’s recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and investmant in airport
facilitizs. Further delails regarding these decisions are included in the Business and Financial review sections of this report.

Employee interests and engagement

Employee involvement and consultation is managed in a number of ways including employee surveys, team updates,
briefings, road shows and an intranet, while collective consuliation takes place with the unions such as Unite and Prospect
for those employee groups where unions are recognised. The Group and the Company also operates frameworks for
consultation and is committed to managing people fairly through change.

Together these arrangements aim o provide a common awareness amongst employees of the financial =nd economic
factors affecting the performance of their business. Bonuses paid to employees reflect the financial perfor.nance of the
business. in addition, some senior management participate in a long term incentive plan which also rewards based on
Group perfarmance.

Communication with employees has been vital during the COVID-19 pandemic, with the Group Chief Executive Officer
chairing live broadcasts with employees regularly throughout the pandemic and senior management engaging regulary
with employee representative bodies and unions. These broadcasts have continued throughout 2022 to ensure
communication to staff is maintained.

Business relationships

Airline and passenger service, safety and security are of critical importance to the Group, with passengers central to the
Group's activities. Health, Safety and Wellbeing is at the heart of everylhing we do. Following successfully gaining top
rating in the 5-star audits in 2022 at all three airports, they were also all awarded the prestigious “Sword of Honour” from
the British Safety Council in 2022, the first airport group ever to do so. All three also received an International Safety Award
with Aerdeen and Glasgow attaining Merit and Southampton attaining Distinction in 2022.

The Group aims to manage its business relationships as effectively and efficiently as possible. Regular engagement and
communication occur with airlines to manitor, share plans, and ultimately ensure that the atrport meets the airtines’ required
operating environment. For supplier contracts this is underpinned by robust and responsible procurement practices which
consider the resilience and sustsinability of suppliers before contracts are commenced with them, as well as frequently
monitoi‘'ng of their operational performance once they commence business with the airports. The Group contiriies {0 work
closely with Government agencies [0 ensure that the Group is responsive to and remains fully compliant with COVID-19
travei requirements and thus, providing a safe environment for passengers to travel.

The airports are subject to regulations from the Civil Aviation Authority ("CAA”") and Departiment for Transport (“DfT} and
have staff dedicated to ensuring full compliance with regulatory requirements, to establish a sound relationship with the
regulator and to advise the Executive Committee, the Health, Safety, Security and Sustainability {"HSS8") Committee and
Board on regulatory matters, The former EASA Regulations continue to be implemented through the Regulaiion (EU) No
139/2014 as retained (and amended in UK domestic law} under the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018.

Community and sustainability impact
At AGS, we are acutely aware that aperating such important pieces of infrastructure comes with responsibilities.

In June 2021, we faunched our sustainability strategy setting out how AGS will balance the undoubted economic and social
benefits of aviation with our climate change responsibilities. The three pillars of our strategy, which is aligned with the
United Nations' Sustainable Development Goals, are achieving net zero, supporting our communities and supporting our
pecple.
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AGS Airports Limited

Strategic report (continued}

Community and sustainability impact {(continued)

Our airports are carbon neutral for Scopes 1 and 2 and have been since 2020. We are committed to maintaining our carbon
neutrality status through the purchase of high quality, Gold Standard offsets. These offsets are independently verified to
ensure the emissions reductions generated by the projects we select are quantifiable and improve the lives of people in
vulnerable communities by supporting sustainable development.

In 2022, all three of our airports achieved Level 3+ Airport Carbon Accreditation (ACA). ACA is the only institutionally
endorsed, global carbon management certification programme for airports. It gnsures we look beyond our own emissions
and engage collaboratively with our stakeholders 1o ensure the industry reduces carbon emissions as a whole, There are
six levels of accreditation with Level 3+ being the “Nevtrality” stage. A key requirement of Level 3+ ‘Neutrality' is that
airports proceed with offsetting only once they have reduced their emissions as much as possible.

The Group has been tracking its carbon emissions since its formation in 2014, with Aberdeen and Glasgow reporting back
as far as 2008 under the previous BAA Group. This information is updated annually with a Carbon Footprint report issued
publicly on an annual basis,

As a committed organisation, there are number of initiaiivas and policies in place to ensure the Group's impact on climate
change is monitored and managed. Over the years we have reported under many government legislated initiatives such
as the Energy Saving and Opportunities Scheme (*ES0S”) and Carbon Reduction Commitment {(*CRC") and also the
Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR), althnugh only Glasgow Airport Limited is required, by law, to report
under this legislation it was considered best practice that all airports within the Group are aligned and are aware of their
emissions therefore the other two airports voluntary report under the SECR.

Since April 2018, 100% of all electricity purchased across AGS is from renewable sources under a Renewable Energy
Guarantees of Origin (REGQ) backed "Green Energy” contract, meaning our emissions that fall within Scope 2 are zero

Improvements have been made in the purchasing of vehicles with Glasgow Airport purchasing eight plug-in hybrids in
November 2018, three electric buses for use between the terminal and the long stay car park and the Group's LED lighting
programme has been rolled out across the three airports. In 2022, Glasgow leased a further two fully electric vans for their
fleet and purchased another hybrid car. Aberdeen also purchased a hybrid car at the end of 2022. Currently across the
group we are looking to extend this programme and bring in more electric /hybrid vehicles in 2023.

The Group has a utilities consultant to look at innovative ways to reduce our consumplion and subsequent carbon
emissions. Carbon management plans have been developed for each group airport and working collaboratively with the
utilities consultant, a number of short, medium and long term opportunities have been identified and will be rolled out over
the next few years.

Together with over 200 airports across Europe, the Group is a signatory 1o ACI Europe’s NetZero 2050 pledge. This is a
commitment to achieve net zero for the carbon under our control by 2050 and Aberdeen and Glasgow Airports will exceed
the Scoftish Government's 2045 target. As a result of this all airports have achieved Airport Carbon Accreditation Level 2
in 2020, with Southampton Airport being the first of the three airports achieving this in 2019. Additionally, all three airports
are now certified as carbon neutral, attaining this in 2020 and 2021

The Group is also a signatory to Sustainable Aviation's decarbonisation roadmap which sets out how the UK aviation
industry can accommodate a 70% growth in passengers by 2050 whilst reducing net carbon emissions levels from just
over 30million tonnes of CO2 per year down to zero through smarter flight operations, new aircraft and engine technology,
modemising our airspace, the use of sustainable aviation fuels and significant investment in carbon reductions through
smart market-based policy measures,

The efforts of AGS Airports in working towards a more sus:ainable future for aviation have been recognised by the global
sustainability organisation Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark (GRESB), who provide standardised and validaled
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) data to finacial markets.

Glasgow, Southampton and Aberdeen were ranked second, third and fifth respectively in the UK panel of airports in the
2022 GRESB annual assessment. In the wider EU panel of airports Glasgow was ranked third, Southampton fourth ang
Aberdeen seventh. In the global panel of airporls Glasgow came fifth, Southampton sixth and Aberdeen twelfth.

Each of our airports has voluntarily undertaken climate change adaptation reporting in 2022. The purpose of these reporis
is to allow the business to identify the risks posed by a changing climate on our airport operations and to allow necessary
adaptation measures to be implemented into our risk register. The methodolegy for understanding the climate risks was
as follows:

+ A baseline assessment of the current climate surrounding our airports

«  Future climatic projections assessed to 2025, 2050 and 2080

¢« Infrastructure and operational risks identified

s Action plan put in place
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AGS Airports Limited

Strategic report (continued}

Community and sustainability impact {continued)

In order to have a relative degree of certainty on future climatic changes we reviewed the UK Climate Projections 2018
{UKCP18) for each airport, UKCP18 uses cutling-edge climate science to provide updated observations in the UK and
globally.

AGS operates an integrated management system, the Managing Responsibly System (MRS). The MRS is ceriified to ISC
14001 (Environmental Management), 1SO 22301 (Business Continuity), 1SO 55001 {Asset Management) and 1SO 45001
(Health and Safety Management), Aberdeen, Glasgow and Southampton airports have achieved |SO 140012015
Covitunnnental Mdiiayernent Sysiems acereditation.

The following table reports the Group's consumption and emissions for the year end 31 December 2022,

Criteria Units 31 December 2022 31 December 2024

ABZ GLA S0u ABZ GLA SQU
Electricity (Total) KWh 12 520,841 25,065,411 3,196,044 12,806,103 20,752,025 2,777,240
Electricity (Tenant) KWh 6,595,957 6,478,945 536,462 6,752,292 6,538,028 361,312
Electricity (Net 6,024,884 15,676,466 2,659,582 5,853,811 14,213,997 2,415,928
Gas {Heating) (Total) kWh 5,691,607 12,578,892 1,209,242 8,243,998 12,895,710 1,183,569
Gas {Other — L PG) kWh 45,360 61,790 32,597 80,675 66,856 2,468
Gas {Tenant) KWh 296,080 732,941 2,185 260,264 876,765 1,017
Gas - {Nel, 5,440,887 11,907,741 1,239,654 5,894,846 12,132,154 1,182,892
Gas Oil kWh 72,975 195,039 52,746 309,627 488 857 166,082
Diesel kWh 297,504 704.493 239,234 165,673 320.871 10.64%
Petrol kWh 94,200 266,788 1,866 67,375 273,957 175
Kerosene (Fire Fighting 209,827 12,722 21,546 204,722 35,432 20,540
Fraining} kwWh
Business Mileage kWh 11,243 28,950 16,748 3,287 5359 6093
Combustion of Gas Tonnes COze 935 2,132 228 1,113 2,233 217
Combustion of Fuel Tonnes COze 112 281 72 134 264 45
Business Travel Tonnes COqe 27.49 7.14 4.13 0.81 1.32 1.50
Kerosene (Fire Fighting 52,15 3.16 5.36 51 8,78 5.09
Training} Tonnes COze
“Location Baseg” 1,165 3.012 514 1,243 3.018 513
Electricity Tonnes COze
Total Gross COze Tonnes COze 2,352 5,435 822.5 2,542 5,525 782
Carban Emissions per 0.00116 0.000832 0.00128 0.00223 0.00266 0.00332
Passenger Tonnes COze/Pax
Carbon Emissions per 0.0312 0.0768 0.0399 0.0394 0.13% 0.0656
Air Traffic Movement Tonnes COze/ATM
Refrigerant Gas Tornes COZe - 61.4 - - 252 -
Wood/Cardboard Used 0.0626 0.0013 0.31 0.0843 - 0.1309
in Fire Training Tonnes COZe
“Market-Based” - - - - - N
Eiectricity Tunnes CO2e

The adopted methodology was 1o use the Greenhouse Gas ("GHG") Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standard developed by World Business Council for Sustainable Development and the World Resources Institute; this sefs
out a corporate accounting and reporiing methodology for GHGs. This is elaborated in cur Carbon Footprint documents
for each airport available on the three airports’ websites, camed out on an annual basis by Ricardo Energy and
Envircnment.

Business conduct

The Board of Direciors determines the Group's long-term strategy, {o ensure that the Group acts ethically and has the
necessary resources to meet its objectives, to monitor performance and to ensure the Group meets it responsibilities to its
various stakeholders.

Group's member activity
The Group’s parent and ultimate parent relationships are disclosed in note 24,

Internal controls and risk management

The directors and management arc responsible for the system of internal controls designed to mitigate the risks faced by
the Group and for reviewing the effectiveness of the system. This is implemented by applying the Group internal control
procedures, supported by a Code of Professional Conduct Policy, appropriate segregation of duties, controls,
organisational design and documented procedures. These internal controls and processes are designed to manage, {o as
low as reasonably practicable, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatements or loss.
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AGS Airports Limited

Strategic report {continued)

internal controls and risk management (continued)
The key features of the Group's internal control and risk management systems in relation to the financial reporiing process
include:
a Group-wide comprehensive system of financial reporting and financial planning and analysis;
documented procedures and policies;
defined and documented levels of delegated financial authority;
an organisational structure with clearly defined and delegated authority thresholds and segregation of duties;
a formal risk management process that includes the identification of financiai risks,
detailed reviews by the Executive Committee and the Board of monthly management accounts measuring actual
performance against both budgets and forecasts on key metrics;
s the Audit and Risk Committee ("ARC") review of financial resuits and key interim and annual financial statements,
before submission to the Board, scrutinising amongst other items;
» compliance with accounting, legal, regulatory and lending requirements,
o critical accounting policies and the going concemn assumption; and
o significant areas of judgement;
* independent review of controls by the internal audit function; and
=  a confidential whistleblowing process,

In addition, the ARC;

»  considers the tender, selection and appoinmtment of the external auditor, making appropriate recommendations 1o the
Board, and assesses the independence of the external auditor;

= ensures that the provision of non-audit services does not impair the external auditor’s independence or objectivity;

= discusses with the external auditor, before the audit commences, the nature and the scope of the audit and reviews
the auditor’s quality control procedures and steps taken hy the auditor to respond tec changes in regulatary and other
requirements;

= reviews external auditor management letters and responses from management;

» has a standing agenda to meet privately with the external auditor independent of the executive directors; and

~ reviewed the scope, operations and reports of the Company’s intemal audit function on the effectiveness of systems
for internal financial control, financia! reporting and risk management.

Principal risks and uncertainties and risk management

The Group's risk management process is used 1o facilitate the identification, evaluation and effective management of the
threats to the achievement of the Group's purpese, vision, objectives, goals and strategies. The vision of risk management
is to embed the awareness of risk at all levels of the organisation, in such a way that day to day activities are managed
effectively and all significant business decisions are risk-informed.

Risk forms parl of the Group’s Managing Responsibly System ("MRS") which is locally governed by each airport's
Managing Responsibly Governance Group ("MRGG"). The MRGG meets on a monthly basis, and is chaired by the
Executive team and consists of heads of departments and Group Head of Assurance. The MRS is linked with the key
strategic intent to run our airports responsibly by being “Safe, Secure and Sustainable”.

The risk management process is evidenced in risk registers which are used as the basis for regular review of risks and
their management, up to AGS Airponts Holdings Limited Board level. The risk registers are also used to inform decisions
relating to the procurement of insurance cover. The risk management process also supports clear accountabilities,
processes and reporling formats that deliver efficient and effective management assurance to the Board to ensure statutory
compliance whilst supporting business units to successfully manage their operations.

The operation of the risk management process and the individual risk registers are subject to periodic review by the ARC,
whose primary responsibility is to provide independent assurance to the Board that the controls put in place by
management 1o mitigate risks are working effectively. In addition o the ARC, a new sub Group of the AGS Airporis Holdings
Limited Board was formed in 2020, the HSSS Committee. This commiltee is a govemance group overseeing all aspects
of HSSS and receiving reports from the respective MRGG meetings.

Assurance is provided through the management reporting processes and reports to the ARC and the HSSS Commitiee.

The principal corporate and reputational risks as identified by the Executive Commitiee are:

Safety risks

Health, Safety and Wellbeing is a core value of the business and the Group actively promotes the role of safety leadership
in creating a safety culture that is intolerant of accidents and incidents. Aberdeen, Glasgow and Southampton airports are
all certificated to the international standard 1SC 45001 with Glasgow alsc being certificated to the Business Continuity
Standard 1SO 22301.
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AGS Airports Limited

Strategic report {continued)

Safety risks {continued)

The Group's Safety Management System called the 'Managing Responsibly System’ (MRS), includes risk assessment
processes for all activities entailing significant risk and proportionate control measures employed to safeguard everyone
impacted by the Group’s business. The Group also operates robust asset management processes {0 ensure property and
equipment remains safe. Compliance oversight of the MRS is provided by the Group Head of Assurance who is deemed
compefent and holds suitable and sufficient qualifications and provides regular updates to the AGS Airports Holdings
Limited Board. Each of the Group's airports is certificated o the asset management standard, 1ISO 55001. Governance,
led by the airports’ Managing Responsibly Governance Group (MRGG) and assurance processes are used to ensure the
aforementioned remain eftective and to encourage continuous improvement.

Security risks

Security risks are regarded as critical risks to manage throughout the Group. The Group mitigates these risks by adopting
and enforcing rigorous policies and procedures supported by professional training and by investment in leading-edge
security technology. The Group works closely with government agencies, including the DIT, the police and Border Force
through a statutory framework to establish joint ascountabilities for airport security and shared ownership of risk, thus
ensuring security measures remain both flexible ard proportionate to the prevailing threat environment.

Regulatory environment, legal and other reputaiional risks

CAA and the DIT regulations

The CAA is concerned with air safely, airspace regulation, consumer protection and environmental research and
consultancy. The CAA also regulates aviation issues and ensures that consumer interests are represented. The DfT
oversees aviation security policy, whilst the CAA sets the common standards for UK airports in the field of aviation and
airport safety. Consequently, the Company is exposed to the risk of changes in day to day operations resulting from
regulatory guidelines issued by the varicus regulators and mitigates this so far as reascnably possible. The airport is
represented by dedicated Glasgow Airport Limited and AGS Airports Group staff that ensure full compliance with regulatory
reguirements, establish sound relationships with regulators and advise the Executive Committee, HSSS Committee and
Board on regulatory matters.

Compelition ruies

The penalties for failing to comply with the 1998 Competition Act and relevant UK law are recognised as risks to manage
within the Group, given its position in certain markets. Clear policy direction, which includes compulsory awareness training
and close support from the internal legal department, reduces the risk of the Group breaching these regulations.

Environmental risks

Environmental risk is managed throughout the Group as it has the potential to impact negatively upon the Group's
reputation and jeopardise its licences/certification 1o operate and to grow. The Group controls and mitigates these risks at
a number of levels. Proactive environmental management is embedded throughout the company’s integrated management
system, the Managing Responsibly System (MRS). Mandatory employee training programmes are embedded within
operations through clear environmental strategies and resource conservation initiatives. Each of the Group’s airports is
certificated to ISO 14001, environmental management standard. Progressive influencing of third parties, stakeholder
engagement and communily relations programmes are also established. The Group has recently achieved Airport Carbon
Accreditation Level 3+ which involved the development of a comprehensive stakeholder engagement plan to ensure that
it reacts effectively to the challenges posed by the environmental agenda. The Group works closely with a range of
stakeholders to ensure that it reacts effectively to the challenges posed by the environmental agenda. Al of the Group's
airports have been assessed against the GRESB standard which is part of their external corporate social responsibility
verification process.

Siavery and human trafficking risks

The Group is committed to ensuring that there is no modern-day slavery or human trafficking in its supply chains or in any
part of its business. AGS Airports Group's Sustainable and Ethical Procurement Policy has been updated to reflect anti-
slavery legistation. AGS’ Group Procurement perform due diligence checks on the AGS supply chain on an annual basis
and at the commencement of any new sourcing activity to ensure modern slavery compliance. The Group expecis these
entities to comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and have suitable anti-slavery and human trafficking policies and
processes in place. The Group's supplier base is mainly UK companies and branches.

Commercial and financial risks

Operational disruption

There are a number of circumstances that can pose short term risks to normal airport operations such as shocks to the
macroeconomic environment, terrorism, wars, airline bankruptcies, human health scares, weather conditions and natural
disasters whose cause may be remote from the location of the affected airport. Where possible the Group seeks to
anticipate the effects of these events on its operations and also maintains business continuity and/or contingency plans to
minimise disruption wherever possible. The directors are monitoring the war in Ukraine however they don't believe there
is a direct material impact to the Group.
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Strategic report (continued)
Commercial and financial risks {continued)

COVID-19

UK COVID-19 travel restrictions were lifted in March 2022 and Airport Testing continued across the airports until July 2022,
The demand for air travel was significantly better than 2021 as a result, with passengers recovering to 68% of pre pandemic
(2019) levels.

Towards the end of 2022 COVID-19 cases began to rnise again. The UK and Scotlish govemments promoted 3rd booster
vaccinations to certain categories of the population which continued to reduce the effects of COVID. As such no further
travel restrictions were imposed and the Group did not experience any negative demand because of this.

Changes in demand

The risk of unanticipated long term changes in passenger demand for ait travel could lead to a shortfall in turnover and
misaligned operational capacity within the Company. Since it is not possible to identify the timing or period of such an
effect, the Company carries out evaluations through a series of scenario planning exercises.

Airline consolidation

The lasting impact of COVID-19 and other inflationary pressures within the industry have resulted in airline failures and
other airlines seeking buyers or refinancing. Airines have also cut or closed bases in response to overcapacity in the
European market. Similar to demand changes, it is not possible to identify the timing or period of such an effect and so
the Group reviews this risk as part of its scenario planning exercises.

Industrial relations

The risk of industrial action by key staff that affects critical services, curails operations and has an adverse financiai and
reputational impact on the Group is recognised. The Group has a range of formal national and local consultative bodies fo
discuss pay, employment conditions and business issues with the Trade Unions. The Group has robust and well tested
conlingency plans in place should there be a need to implement them in the event of industrial action. The Group could
also be exposed in the shorl term to the effect of industrial action involving other key stakeholdets in the aviation secior
such as airlines, air traffic controllers, baggage handlers and Border Force.

UK withdrawal from the EU

The Brexit transition period ended on 31 Oecember 2020 with the UK and EU agreeing a Comprehensive Trade
Agreement, which included an aviation chapter. This has allowed the Group's airports to operate without disruption in
2021 and 2022,

As a result of Brexit, on the 1 January 2021 in the UK the Airside Exira Statutory Concession Scheme ceased to exist,
which means no tax free sales for vatable goods and impacts both duty free operators and airside specialist shops. On 25
May 2021 the Judicial review concluded with the High Court and Court of Appeal judges upholding the Government
position, rejecting claims about its decision making process and approach. This is disappointing for the industry, however,
the return of duty free for aicohol and tobaceo for all passengers leaving the UK should assist the duty free operators to
partially offset the losses from tax free. The conclusion of the Judicial Review also allows the industry to increase efforts
on lobbying the Treasury and Government on the introduction of arrivals duty free, which would allow UK airports and duty
free operators to take advantage of the increased arrivals aliowances that the government reintroduced as part of Brexit.
If successful, this will increase duty free sales.

Treasury

The Board of AGS Airports Holdings Limited approves prudent treasury policies and delegates certain responsibilities
including changes to treasury policies and the implementation of funding and risk strategy to the AGS Airports Group
Finance Team. Senior management directly control day to day treasury operations on a centralised basis.

The policy is not lo permit speculation in financial instruments. Its purpose is to identify, mitigate and hedge treasury related
financial risks inherent in the Group’s business operations and funding. interest rate swaps are ente. ed into as considered
appropriate to protect against interest rate risks,

The primary treasury related financial risks faced by the Group are:

(a) Interest rates
The Group has floating rate debt and manages the risk through use of interest rate hedging instruments. As at 31
December 2022, the Graup's fixed floating interest rate profile, after hedging, on gross third parties debt was 84.3%
(2021: B4.3%).
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Strategic report {continued)

Treasury (continued)

{b} Funding and liquidity
The Group is financed through bank facilities totalling £757million (2021 £757million) and shareholder loans totalling
£263million (2021 £246million). For 2022 the Group has a paositive cashfiow, driven by the positive EBITDA generated
following recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents were £52million
(2021 £39million). The undrawn headroom under shareholders' subsequent equity commitment was £30million at 31
December 2022 (2021; £30million).

Covenants are standardised wherever possible and are monitored on an ongoing basis with formal testing reported to
the Executive Committee, ARC and the Board.

(¢} Counterparty credit
The Group's exposure to credit related losses, in the event of non-performance by counterparties to financial
instruments, is mitigated by limiting exposure to any one party or instrument.
The Group maintains a prudent split of cash and cash equivalents across market counterparties in order to mitigate

counterparty credit risk. Board approved investrment policies and relevant debt facility agreements provide cournterparty
invesiment limits, hased on short term and long term credit ratings.

On behalf of the Board

(‘S Guan (47 far

" AS4BO2ED2080420. A4COB4B4FECBa44E
Simon Geere Andrew Carlisle
Director Director

31 March 2023 31 March 2023
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Directors’ report
The Directors present their Annual report and the audited consolidated and parent company financial statements for AGS
Airports Limited and all of its subsidiary undertakings for the year ended 31 December 2022,

Principal activities
The principal activity of the Group is the management of three airports in the UK located in Glasgow, Aberdeen and
Southampton.

Results and dividends

The loss after taxation for the financial year for the Group amounted to £27million (2021 restated: £103million). During the
year the Company paid no dividends to AGS Airports Investments Limited (2021: £nif}. The statutory resufis are sef out on
page 18.

Directors
The directors who served during the year and tc the date of this report, except as noted, are as follows:

Andrew Carlisle

Maria Cristina Casero Borges
Simon Geere

David Kenny

Miguel Rodera Onaderra
Lena Wilson

James O'Sullivan

Juan Carlos Bullon Aleman
Madhulika Saraf

Alternative directors
Gordon Parsons

Employment policies

The Company has defined a set of guiding principles to ensure fair recruitment and selection. The Company continues to
aim to recruit, retain and develop high calibre people and has talent and succession management programmes for
manageriai roles.

The Company is committed to giving full and fair consideration to applicants for employment. Every applicant or employee
will be treated equally whatever their race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, sex, marital status, sexual
orientation, religious belief, disability, age or community background. The Company aclively encourages a diverse range
of applicants and commits to fair treatrnent of all applicants. The Company's investment in learning and development is
guided by senior line managers who ensure that the Company provides the Ieammg opportunities to support the
competencies that are seen as key to the Campany's success.

Disabled persons have egual opportunities when applying for vacancies, with due regard to their aptitudes and abilities.
The Company has further procedures to ensure that disabled colleagues are faidy treated and that their training and career
development needs are carefully managed. Where employees have become disabled during the course of employment,
the Company endeavours to ensure continuing employment through the arrangement of appropriate training.

Employee engagement
Details of the Group's employee engagement policies and practices can be found on page 5 in the section 172(1)
disclasures within the Strategic report.

Business relationships
Details of the Group's business relationship management and maintenance can be found on page 5 in the section 172(1)
disclasures within the Strategic report.

Energy and carbon reporting
Details of the Group's energy consumption and carbon emissions can be found on page 7 in the section 172(1) disclosures
within the Strategic report in Community and environmental impact.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

The UK Government's Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) policy was mplemented on 1 April 2019, Data
is collected on an annual basis as part of carbon footprint reporting. UK government conversion factors are then used to
collate thig data into a table. This table is included within the Strategic report in Community and environmental impact.,
page 7.

Emissions have been grouped according to the GHG Protocol Corporate Standard.

We have used the following data sources for the report for the:
+ Energy and Fuel Data - Energy supplier billing data and electricity half bour data.
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Directors’ report (continued)

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting {continued)
* Transport Data — Company mileage records and fuel purchasing, in litres,
* Refrigerant Emissions — Engineering maintenance records.

Political donations
No political donations have been made in the year {2021: £nil},

Internal controls and risk management

The Group and the Company aclively manage identified corporate risks and has in place a system of internal controls
designed to mitigate these risks. The mitigation controls are identified within each Risk Register, with risk registers in
place for each Group airport and function which are managed through their respective MRGG meeting. These are then
reviewed, assessed and extrapelated to form the Group risk register. A full risk report is presented at each Audit and Risk
Committee meeting and HSSS Committee meeting, providing an overview of the mitigating risk controls in place. Details
of the Group and the Company's internal controls and risk management policies can be found in the Internal controls and
risk management section of the Strategic report.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group and the Company’s financial risk management cbjectives and Lolicies, along with the Group's exposure to risk
have been disclosed In the Internal controls and risk management section of the Strategic report.

Directors' indemnity

The Group and the Company's Articles of Association provide that, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2008,
but without prejudice to any protection from liability which might otherwise apply, every director of the Group or the
Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Group or the Company against any foss or liability incurred by
him/har in defending any proceedings in which judgement is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is acquitted or in
connection with any application in which relief is granted to him/her by the court for any negligence, defauit, breach of duty
or breach of trust by him/her in relation to the Group or the Company or otherwise in connection with his/her duties or
powers or office.

Auditor
Deloitte LLP resigned as auditor of the company on 13™ May 2022, Following a tender process, the Directors have
appointed Ermst & Young LLP as auditor of the company.

Statement of disclosure of information to the auditor
Each of the persons who is a direclor at the date of approval of this Annuai report confirms that:

= so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group and the Company's auditor is
unaware; and

= the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himselffherself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group and the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies
Act 2006.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf
DocuSigned by:

DocuSigned by:
Swen. & E{Q Z‘,LL_

AS4BO2ED208D42D.

4COBABAFECBO44E
Simon Geere Andrew Carlisle
Director Director
31 March 2023 31 March 2023
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Directors’ responsibilities statement in respect of the Annual Report and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and parent Company financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent Company financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law they are required to prepare the Group financial stalements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies to the European Union and
applicable United Kingdom law, and have elected to prepare the parent Company financial statements in accerdance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law)
including Financial Reporting Standard 101, “Reduced Disclosure Framework™.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent Company and of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing
each of the Group and parent Company financial statements, the Diractors are required to:

- select suitable accounting pdlicies and then apply them consistently;

= make judgements and estimates that ars reasonable, relevant and reliable;

» state whether they have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards;

» assess the Group and parent Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concem; and

» use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company or to
cease

operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent Company
and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for
stich intemal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
rmaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other ifregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report and Directors’
Report that complies with that law and those regulations. The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the UK goveming the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect of the annual financial report

We confimn that to the best of our knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole; and

- the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the
issuer and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertzinties that they face.

We consider the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s position and performance, business model and strategy.

DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
ES(MM & E{Q Z—i L

AS4B02ED206042D —-4COB4B4FEC

Simon Geere Andrew Carlisl|
Director Director
31 March 2023 31 March 2023
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Independent auditor's report to the members of AGS Airports Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of AGS Airports Limited and #s subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31
December 2022 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows, the Company Statement of Financial Pasilion, Company Staternent of Changes in Equity and the related
notes 1 to 26, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparatior: is applicable law and UK adopted International Accounting Standards and as regards the parent
company financial statements, as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion:

. the financial statemenis give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 December
2022 and of the group's loss for the year then ended;

. the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted International Accounting
Standards;

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted International
Accounting Stancards as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, and

. the financial statemgnts have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit ir accardance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty relatad to going concern

We draw attention to page 23 in the financial statements, which describes the Direclors’ assessment over the Company’s
ability {0 continue as a going concern. As stated on page 23, the current debt facilities with an outstanding balance of
£757m mature on 18 June 2024 requiring full repayment upon maturity. The formalised process of refinancing has not
currently commenced, and this therefore indicates that a material uncertainty exists in respect of successfully securing
refinancing that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, Qur opinion is not
madified in respect of this matter.

The financial statements do not reflect any adjustments that would be required to be made if they were prepared on basis
other than going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concemn are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a
guarantee as to the group's ability to continue as a going concem.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is o reac the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge ohtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. if, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report
that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard,

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

n our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of AGS Airports Limited

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 reguires us to

report to you if, in our opinion;

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

* the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

s we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 14, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parerit company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasconable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK} will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregutarities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate
concealment by, for exampie, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for
the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and management.

*  We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the company and
determined that the most significant are those that relate to the reporting framework (IFRS and the Companies Act
2006), and the relevant tax compliance regulations. In addition, we concluded that there are certain significant laws
and regulations defined by the Civil Avialion Authority (CAA), the European Aviation Safety Agency (EASA),
Aerodomes (UK Reg (EU) No 13972014}, and the Aviation Security Facilitation {ICAQ) as well as laws and regulations
in relation to health and safety and employee matters.

- We understood how AGS Airports Limited is complying with those frameworks by making enquiries of managerment,
including those are responsible for legal and compliance procedures, to understand how the Company maintains and
communicates its policies and procedures in these areas. We corroborated our enquiries by reading Board minutes
and papers provided to the Board and reading correspondence with tax and regulatory authorities.

+  We assessed the susceptibility of the Group and company’s financial statements to material misstatemment, including
how fraud might occur by meeting with management te understand their assessment of areas susceptible to fraud,
and considered the risk of management override of controls due to performance targets and their propensity to
influence efforts made by management to manage eamings or influence the perceptions of stakeholders, Where the
risk was considered to be higher we performed specific audit procedures including incorporating data analytics into
our testing of revenue and manual journals and transactions recorded by management. We identified and agreed
transactions, based on selected criteria, back to independent supporting evidence or source documentation.

« Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncompliance with such laws and
regulations. Our procedures involved oblaining legal advice given to management, discussing matters directly with
internal and extemnal legal counsel, reading Board briefings, involving EY Forensic specialists, substantively testing
the legal expenses account, and considering whether any events or conditions during the audit might have indicated
non-compliance with laws and regulations, including abtaining supporting evidence as relevant. We also completed
procedures to conclude on the compliance of the disclosures in the financial statements with the reporting framework
(IFRS and Companies Act 2006).

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
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Independent auditor's report to the members of AGS Airports Limited

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

L-'m;} ["{00‘7 (wf -

Annie Graham (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Statutory Auditor

Glasgow, United Kingdom

31 March 2023
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| AGS Airports Limited

Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2022

Year ended 31 December 2022

As restated®
Year ended 31 December 2021

Befare certain

Before certain

re- Certain re- re- Certain re-
measurements measurements’  Total measurements  measurements’  Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 1
Recurring 167 - 167 87 - 87
Non-recurring 1/3 ) - {1) 4] - (n
! Total revenue 166 - 166 86 - 86
Operating costs Z
Recurring (149) - (149) 123) -2y
Non-recurring - - - - -
Total operating costs (149) - (149) {123) - (129
Fair value (loss)/gain on
investment properties 8§ - _(6) (6) - 12 12
Operating profit(loss) 17 {6} 11 (37} 12 {25)
Analysed as
Operating loss before non-
recurring items 18 8) 12 (36) 12 (24)
Non-recurring items 1/3 (1) - [ i - _{n
Finance costs {net) 4 47 - 47 42 - 42
‘ Loss before tax (30) €  (36) (79) 12 (67}
Taxation 5 7 2 9 (52 16 (36)
Loss for the year 23 {4} (27) [131) 28 (103)

* See note 26 for details regarding the restatement.

The notes on pages 23 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1 Certain re-neasurements defined on page 26
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AGS Airports Limited

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2022

As
restated”
Year Year
ended ended
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
Note £m £m
Loss for the year — as previously reported 20 (27) (115)
Restatement of 2021 joss for deferred tax asset movement 26 - 12
Loss for the year - restated ' 27) (103)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit pension asset 17 (10} 4
Tax relating to ilems that will not be raclassified subsequently to profit or loss 2 (2)
20 (8) 2
Items that may be reciassified subsequently to profit or loss
Cash flow hedges:
Gains arising during the year 22 14
Income tax relating ta items that may be reclassified subsequently to proiit or loss {7) -
19 15 14
Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax 7 16
Total comprehensive loss for the year - restated {20) (87)

* See note 26 for details regarding the restatement.

The notes on pages 23 fo 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AGS Airports Limited

Consolidated statement of financial position as af 31 December 2022

As restated*

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
Note £m £m
ASSETS
Non~current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 360 376
Intangible assets 7 556 557
Investment properties 8 352 358
Pension asset 17 - 4
Berivative financial instruments 13 28 6
Restricted cash 11 33 21
1,329 1,322
Current assets
Inventories 9 1 . 1
Trade and other receivables 10 29 22
Cash and cash equivalents 11 19 18
49 41
Total assets 1,378 1,363
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 12 1,083 1,052
Deferred tax liabilities 15 187 191
_Employee Benefits 17 6 -
1,246 1,243
Current liabilities
Borrowings 12 80 58
Trade and other payables 16 46 36
126 94
Total liabilities 1,372 1,337
Net assats 6 26
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Share capital 18 - -
Share Premium 19 50 50
Hedging reserve 19 21 8
Retained losses 20 {65) {32)
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent Company 6 26

* See note 26 for details regarding the restatement.
The notes on pages 23 to 52 form an integrai part of these financial statements.

The statutory financial statements of AGS Airports Limited (Company registration number: 09201991) were approved by
the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 31 March 2023. They were signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by: DecuSqned by:
Simain. LLurn ‘7 -»C L
ASABO2ED20ED42D 4CCB4B4FECOOM4E.
Simon Geere Andrew Carlisle
Director Director
31 March 2023 31 March 2023
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AGS Airports Limited

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2022

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent

_ Company
As
As
*
::::i:a: 4 restated*
Share Share Hedging 08568 Total
capital Premium reserve
Note £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2021 — as previously reported - - {8) 54 48
Restaternent of 1 January 2024 equity for
deferred tax asset recognised 26 - - - 15 15
Balance at 1 January 2021 - restated - - {6) 69 63
Comprehensive loss: .

Loss for the year — as previously repored 20 . - - - (118} (115)

Movement in deferred tax asset recognised 26 - - - 12 12

Loss for the year - reslated - - - {103) (103)
Other comprehensive loss - - 14 2 16
Total comprehensive loss - - 14 {101} {87)
Transactions with owners R 50 R _ 50
Share issuance
Balance at 31 December 2021 - restated - 50 B (32) 26
Comprehensive loss:

Lnss for the year 20 - - - (27) 27)
QOther comprehensive gain/{loss) - - 15 {8} 7
Total comprehensive loss - - 15 (35) (20)
Reaclassification from hedging reserve
1o retained losses - - (2) 2 -
Balance at 31 December 2022 - 50 21 {65) [

* See note 26 for details regarding the restatement.

The notes on pages 23 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AGS Airports Limited

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022

Year ended Year ended
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
Note Em £m
Net cash used in operating activities 22 47 (14)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (10) (11)
Net cash used in investing activities {10) (11)
Financing activities
Interest paid (24) (22)
Drawdown of subordinated debt - 50
Repayment of subordinated debt - (50
Proceeds of long-term borrowings - 20
Proceeds of issue of share capital - 50
Fees paid - (@)
Restricted cash (12) (21}
Net cash from financing activities (36) 25
Opening cash and cash equivalents 18 18
Movements in the year 1 -
Closiqg_r,ash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 11 19 18

The notes on pages 23 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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AGS Airports Limited

Accounting policies for the year ended 31 December 2022
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements of AGS Airports Limited and its
subsidiaries, together the Group are set out below. These policies have been applied consistently unless otherwise stated.

The Group’s financial statements are presented in Sterting and all values are rounded to the nearest million pounds (£m)
except when otherwise indicated. AGS Airports Limited is incorporated in the United Kingdem under the Companies Act
2005. The address of the registered office is given on page 1. The Company is a private company himited by shares and
is registered in England and Wales

Basis of preparation

The Group financial statemenis are prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, financial assets, derivative financial instruments and financial liabilities that qualify as hedged items under fair
value hedge accounting. These exceptions to the historic cost convention have been measured at fair value in accordance
with IFRS8s.

Level 1 - quoted prices (Unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - inputs other than quoled prices included within Level 1 thal are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices);

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market dzati: {that is, unobservable inputs).

The directors present their Annual report and the audlted financiat statements for AGS Airports Limited for the year ended
31 December 2022 with comparatives against 31 December 2021.

Primary financial statements format
The Group financial statements are presented in accordance with IFRS and I1AS 1.

A columnar approach has been adopted in the income statement and the impact of the following items is shown in a
separate column (“certain re-measurements”). This allows the presentation of the performance of the business before
specific fair value gains and losses. These items are:

i fair value gains and losses on investment property revaluations; and

ii the associated tax impacts of item above,

Going concern

In the year ended 31 December 2022 the Group has continued to build back from the Covid-19 pandemic, recovering
overall passengers to 68% of pre pandemic (2019) levels. Revenue has increased to £166million and operational
expenditure (including fair value loss on investment properties} was £155million resulting in an operaling profit of
£11million, an increase of £36million from the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors have worked to conserve cash in response to a high inflation environment and rising interest rates. The
Group entered into a new floating to fixed interest rate swap on 8 November 2022 thus reducing interest rate exposure on
the external debt. The Directors have also focussed on controliing operating expenditure, prioritising the capital investment
program, and have maintained unrestricted cash at £19million on 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021 £18million). The
Group continues to hold restricted cash of £33million (31 December 2021: £21million) to service its future 12 months
interest payments.

The Group finances its activities through funds generated from operations and nas access to external debt and
shareholders’ loan facilities. The external debt facilities include covenants, a breach of which would result in the amounts
drawn becoming payable on demand.

On 18 June 2021 the Group completed negotiations with lenders regarding amending and extending its external debt
facility and the waiving of certain existing covenant tests on 30 Junse 2021, 31 December 2021, and 30 June 2022. Under
the amended and extended debt facility agreement the Group’s debt of £757million wil! now mature in June 2024, interest
rates have been revised to Sterling overnight index rate {SONIA) plus a margin, the Group will maintain a debt service
reserve to cover the future 12-month debt service requirements and revised covenant tests have been established,
including a minimum figuidity test which has been put in place and has not been waived. The Group's shareholders also
provided a further £35million of equily, £35million of loans and a commitment to provide an additional £30million of equity
callable to meet cashflow requirements through to June 2024, The additional £30million of committed equity remains
undrawn at 31 December 2022,

The Directors have performed a robust assessment of the Group’s forecasts and cash flows and its ability to meet its
obligations as they fall due over the period to 31 March 2024, In doing so, they have reviewed current performance, industry
trends, financial projections, inciuding our long-term business plan, and considered sensitivities to test the robustness of
the assumptions made. Those forecasts and sensitivities have included the impact of Flybe Limited entering Administration
on 28 January 2023 {note 25}, a reduction lo passenger numbers and an adjustment to macro-economic factors. Those
forecasts indicate that the Group can continue to operate for the Going Concern period te 31 March 2024. The directors
have also considered a savere downside scenaric and in doing so, betieve that the Group should be able to manage its
business risks successfully, Under all scenarios the Group has sufficient liquidity and covenant headroom throughout the
going concern period.

Accounting policies for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)
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AGS Airports Limited

Going concern (continued)

The going concern assessment included a review of forecast profits, cash flow, liquidity, covenant compliance and a
possible downside scenario relating to liquidity and covenants. The directors have considered several options available to
them to mitigate a liguidity issue should it arise. These include further cost saving initiatives and securing additional finance,
if available. The possible downside is not currently considered likely and shows sufficient liguidity and covenant headroom
throughout the going concern period.

The directors have also considered the ability of the Group to refinance its loans which mature on 18 June 2024, being just
outside of the going concern pericd. The external debt facilities are expected to have an outstanding balance of £757million
as at the maturity date of 18 June 2024, requiring full repayment upon maturity. The Directors are confident that new
financing facilities will be concluded to support the Group’s operational needs beyond June 2024, The Group's resilience
through Covid-19, strong recovery and positive forecasts all provide the Directors with confidence in a successful
refinancing. However, as at the date of these financizal statements the process of refinancing has not yet commenced
therefore the directors hightight that a material uncertainty exists at this time in respect of the Group's abilitv to conclude
new financing facilities.

The directors believe that the Group should be able to manage its business risks successfully and the Group’s forecasts
‘ang-projections show that the Group should be able to operate within the level of its available liquidiiy. Accordingiy, the
divetors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and financial statemauts, however, the
matters described above result in the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the Group's
ability to continue as a going concemn and therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities
in tha normal course of business.

Adoption of new and revised IFRSs

{a) New standards, interpretations and amendments to standards adopted by the Group

During the year, the Group adopted the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB that are mandatorily effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, Their adoption has not had any material impact on the
disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements:

*  Amendments to IAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment} — Proceeds before Intended Use. The amendments

' prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of onerating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the procesds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

+  Amendments to IAS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets): Onercus Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract. The amendments specify that the ‘cast of fulfilling” a contract comprises the 'costs that relate
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fuffilling contracts.

« Amendments to Referances to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards - The amendments include
consequential amendments fo affected standards so that they refer to the new Framework.

The following amendments are not applicable to the Group:
*  Amendments to JFRS 5 Applying IFRS 8 ‘Financial Instruments’ with IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’
« Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
+  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

{b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been adopted
early by the Group. The following standards, amendments and interpretations, which have not been applied (and are
not expacted to have any impact) in these financial statements, were in issue but not yet effective:

» Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants. Applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The amendment clarifies
how conditions with which an entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period affect the
classification of a liability.

«  Amendments to JAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies. Applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023, The amendments require that an entity discloses its material accounting policies, instead
of its significant accounting policies.

+ Amendments to 1AS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates. Applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023. The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a
definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”™.

« Amendments to 1AS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction. Applicable
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The amendments clarify that the initial
recognition exemption does not apply to transactions in which equal amounts of deductible and taxable temporary
differences arise on initial recognition.

+« Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback. Applicable for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The amendment clarifies how a sellerlessee subsequently measures sale
and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale.
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AGS Airports Limited

Accounting policies for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Adoption of new and revised IFRSs {continued)
» |FRE 17 Insurarve Conlracts. Applicable tor annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
Amends IFRS 17 to address concerns and implementation challenges that were identified after IFRS 17 Insurance
Contracis was published in 2017.

Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statemenis consolidate the financial statements of AGS Airports Limited and all its subsidiaries.

The AGS Airports Limited Group is formed by the companies: Aberdeen Intermational Airport Limited, Glasgow Airport
Limited, Southampton Intemational Airport Limited, Airport Holdings NDH1 Limited and BAA Lynton Limited.

Subsidiaries
Sut:sidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accempanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group conirols another entity.
Intva-group halances and transactions of the continuing operations are eliminated during the consolidatich process.

Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes.

Aeronautical
= Passenger charges based on the number of departing passengers,
Aircraft landing charges levied according to weight recognised on landing.
Aircraft deparure charges levied according to weight of departing aircraft.
Aircraft parking charges based on a combination of weight and time parked as provided.
Airline contracts may include short term pricing arrangements including discounts and rebates which are applied
where appropriate.
»  Other charges levied for passenger and baggage operation when these services are rendered.

Retail
» Concession fees from retail and commercial concessionaires at or around airporis are based upon tumover
certificates supplied by concessionaires and are recognised in the period to which they relate.
*  Car parking income is recognised at the time of exiting the car park in accordance with operator management fee
arrangements. Pre-booked car parking income is recognised at the time of entering the car park.

Property and operational facilities
*  Property lefting rentals, recognised on a straight fine basis over the term of the rental period.
=  Proceeds from the sale of trading properties, recognised on the unconditional completion of the sale.
= Usage charges made for operational systems (e.g. check-in desks), recognised as each service is provided.
= Otherinvoiced sales, recognised on the performance of the service.

Other
= Charges related to passengers with restricted mobility and various other services, recognised at the time of delivery.
< COVID-19 testing income based on the number of passenger tests,

Aeronautical rebates

Airline contracts may include short term pricing arrangements such as discounts or rebates. These may include volume
related discounts or rebates which are based on target passenger numbers. Management will make judgements at the
year end to determine whether the targets have been or will be met and accordingly will make an accrual which resuits in
a debit to revenue.
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AGS Airports Limited

Accounting policies for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued}

Grants and contributions
On occasion, the Group may receive grants to provide financial incentives to improve airport infrastructure considered to
be in the best interest of the public. Grants received are treated as a reduction in the cost of the related fixed assets.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in the income statement in the relevant financial
statement line on a systematic basis in the periods in which the expenses are recognised to present the net expense to
the Group.

Non-recurring items and certain re-measurements

On the face of the income statement, the Group presents non-recurring items and certain re-measurements separately.
Non-recurring items are material items of income or expense that, because of their size or incidence, merit separate
presentation to allow an understanding of the Group’s financial performance.

Re-measurements may include fair value gains and losses on investment property revaluations and the associated tax
impacts and non-recurring items may include gains or losses on the disposal of businesses or assets that do not qualify
as discontinued operations, major reorganisation of businesses, closure or mothballing of terminals and costs incurred in
bringing new airport terminal complexes and airfields io operational readiness that are not able to be capitalised as part of
the project. Details of non-recurring items and certair re-measurements are provided in notes 1,3 and 8.

Finance income

Finance income is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably. Finance income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Finance costs

Finance costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
take a substantial period of time te get ready for their intended use or sale, are added ta the cost of those assets, until the
asset is complete and available for use. Such finance costs are capitalised whilst projects are in progress.

Where assets in the course of construction are financed by specific facilities, the interest rate relating to those specific
horrowing facilities is used to calculate the amount to capitalise, otherwise an interest rate based on the weighted average
cost of debt is used. Capitalisation of interest ceases once the asset is complete and available for use, Interest is then
charged to the income statemert as a depreciation expense over the life of the relevant asset. All other finance costs are
recognised in the income statement in the year in which they are incurred.

Property, ptant and equipment

Operational assets
Terminal complexes, airfield assets, plant and equipment and other land and buildings are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Assets in the course of construction are stated at cost less provision for impairment. Assets in the course of construction
are transferred to completed assets when substantially all the activities necessary to get the asset ready for use are
complete and the asset is available for use. Where appropriate, cost includes finance costs capitalised, own labour costs
of construction-related project management and dirastly attributable overheads. Projects that are in the early stages of
planning are capitalised where the directors are satisfied that it is probable the necessary consents will be received and
the projects will be developed to achieve a successful delivery of an asset such that future commercial returns will flow to
the Group. The Group reviews these projecis on a regular basis to determine whether events or circumstances have
arisen that may indicate that the camrying amount of the asset may not be recovarable, at which point the asset would be
assessed for impairment.
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AGS Airports Limited

Accounting policies for the year endad 31 December 2022 {continued)

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on operational assets, other than land and assets 1n the course of construction, 1o write off the
cosl of the assets less estimated residual value, by equal instalments over their expected useful lives as set out below:

Termninal complexes Fixed asset lives
Terminal building, pier and satellite structures 20-60 years
Terminal fixtures and fittings 5-20 years
Airport plart and equipment
Baggage systems 15 years
Screening cquipment 7 years
Lifts, escalators and travelators 20 years
Cther plant and equipment, including runway lighting and building plant 5-20 years
Tunnels, bridges and subways 50100 yaars
Airfields
Runway surfaces 10-15 years
Runway bases 100 years
Taxiways and aprons 50 years
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles 4-8 years
Office equipment 5-10 years
Computer equipment 4-5 years
Computer software 3-7 years
Right-of-use assets Lower of useful economic life or lease period
Other land and buildings
Freehold property 10-50 years
Right-of-use assets Lower of useful economic life or lease period

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, al each reporting date.

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimales the asset's recoverable
amount. Where the asset does not generate cash flows independent of other assets, the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the assetl belongs is estimated. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, tha estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present vaiue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
the cash-generating unit is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
{o determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment joss was recognised. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amournd cannol exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a straight line basis over its remaining useful life.

Investment properties
investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is stated at fair value at the
reporting date, as determined at the reporting dates by the directors and by externai valuers every year. Gains ar losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investiment property are recognised in the income slatement in the period in
which they arise. Gains or losses on disposal of an investment property are recognised in the income statement on the
unconditional completion of the sale.

Capitalisation of interest
Interest costs resulting from financing property, plant and equipment that are in the course of construction are capitalised
whilst projects are in progress. Where assets in the course of construction are financed by specific borrowing facilities
the interest rate relating to those specific borrowing fadilities is used to calculate the amount to capitalise, otherwise an
interest rate based on the weighted average cost of debt is used. Capitalisation of interest ceases once the asset is
complete and available for use. Interest is then charged to the income statement as a depreciation expense over the life
of the relevant asset.
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AGS Airports Limited
Accounting policies for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Intangible assets and goodwill
Goodwill
Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impaimment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and
is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment. Any impairment is recognised in the income stalement. An
impairment loss recognised in respect of this indefinite life intangible asset is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Goodwill is not amortised but is subject to an impairment review at least annually, or more frequently if there is an
indication that the carrying vaiue of goodwill may be impaired.

Right to operate

Right to operate relates to the permission to levy charges for the use of the airport infrastructure. Right to operate is not
amortised but is subject to an annual impairment test. Any impaiment is recognised in the income statement. An
impairment loss recognised in respect of this indefinite life intangible asset is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Software

Computer software costs principally relate to operating and financial software. These assets are amortised over a period
of 4-7 years. Amortisation for the year is charged through operating costs. The assets are assessed for impaiment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaia:d.

Leases

Group as a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset, with the exception of short term {12 months or less) and low value leases, and
a lease liability at the lease commencement date on the balance sheet.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or restore the underying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight line methed from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as the Group’s other property, plant and
equipment. Right-of-use assets are included in the review for impairment ¢ f property, plant and equipment, if there is an
indication that the carrying amount of a cash generating unit may be impaired,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily delermined, the Group's
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments include fixed lease payments, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or rate, amounts payable under a residual value guarantee and exiension oplions expected to be exercised, Where
a lease contains an extension option which the Group can exercise without negotiation, lease payments for the extension
period are included in the fiability if the Group is reasonable certain that it will exercise the option. When the {ease lability
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments a corresponding adjustment is made to the right-of-use
assel.

The Group recognises lease payments associated with for short term and [ow value leases as an expense on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Rental income from leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating a lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income.

Inventories
Raw materials and consumables consist of engineering spares and other consumable stores and are valued at the lower
of cost and net realisable value and include all costs to bring inventories io their present location and condition.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand, short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments, and bank overdrafts.

Deferred income
Contractual income received in advance is treated as deferred income and released to the income statement as earned.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obfigation (legal or constructive) as a resuit of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to setile the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect
is material.
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AGS Airports Limited

Accounting policies for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Financial instruments

Classification and initial rneasurement of financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component and are measured at the
transaction price in accordance with FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, all financial assets are initially
measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs (where applicable).

Financial assets, other than those designed and effective hedging instruments, are classified into the following categories:
» amonised cost
o fair vatuc through profit or leas (CVTPL)
+ fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The classification is determined by both:
+« the Group's business model for maniaging the financial asset
s« the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement of financial as:ets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured al amortisec cost if the assets meel the following conditions (and are nol designated as
FVTPL):
« they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual
cash flows
« ihe contraciual terms of the financing assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit of loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than “hold to collect” or “hold to collect and sell” are
categorised at fair value through profit and foss. Further, irrespective of the business model financial assets whose
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVTPL. All derivative financial
instruments fall into this category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge
accounting requirements apply.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
The Group accounts for financial assets at FVOCI if the assets meet the following conditions:
» they are held under a business model whose objective is to “hatd to collect” the associated cash flows and sell
and,
+ the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Any gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) will be recycled upon derecognition of the asset.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less loss allowance.

Trade receivables expected credit losses ("~CL") are calculated using an approach which reflects the previous history
of credit losses on the financial assets, appiying different provision levels based on the age of the receivable. For other
receivables, where there is a history of no credit losses, and where this is expected lo persist into the future, no ECL is
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments a-2 classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that provides a residual interest in the assets of a business after
deducting all other liabilities.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments.
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the
Group designates a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cos! using the effective interest method except for
derivatives and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which are carried subsequently at fair value with gains and
losses recognised in profit or loss {other than derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as
hedging instruments).

All interest related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are reporting in the profit or loss
are included within finance costs.
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AGS Airports Limited

Accounting policies for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subseguently stated
at amortised cost unless part of a fair value hedge relationship. Any difference between the amount initially recognised
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings being novated or cancelled and re-issued, with a
substantial modification of the terms, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financiat liability, with any resulting gain or loss recognised in the income staternent.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their fair value and subsequenily measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsaquently re-
measured at their fair value.

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) except for derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedge relationships, which require a specific accounting treatment.

To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must meet all of the following requirements:
+ there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrumen,; and
» the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic relationship.

The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group designates certain derivatives as either:
+ fair value hedges, where they hedge exposure to changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability; or
» cash flow hedges, where they hedge exposure to variability in cash flows that are either aitributable to a particular
risk associated with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset, liability or forecasted transaction.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transacticns. The Group
also documenits, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, its assessment of whether the derivatives used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

The fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity is more
than 12 months and as a current asset or liability where it is less than 12 months. Derivatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting and which are not held for trading purposes are classified based on their maturity.

Fair value hedges
Changes in lhe fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statemnent, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable fo the hedged
risk. If the hedge no longer meels the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged
itern for which the effective interest rate method is used is amortised in the income statement over the period to maturity.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in equity and the SOCI. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement. Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the periods when the hedged
item affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income stalement,

Derivatives at fair value through the income statement
Where certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in their fair value are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

When derivatives are designated in a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge, the net interest payable or receivable on
those derivatives is recorded net of the interest on the underlying hedged item in the income statement. When derivatives
are not in a hedge relationship the fair value changes on these derivatives are recognised within fair value gains/(losses)
on financial instruments in the income statement. The interest payable and receivable on those derivatives are recorded
at their gross amounts in finance costs and finance income in the income statement.
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Accounting policies for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Accounting for changes in credit risk
Accounting standards require that the fair value of financial instruments reflects their credit quality, and also changes in
credit quality where there is evidence thal this has occurred. Where material, the credil risk associaled with the Group's
derivatives is reflected in ils derivative valuations. This credit factor is adjusted over time to reflect the reducing tenor of
the instrument and is updated where the credit associated with the derivative has clearly changed based on market
transaction and prices.

Effective interest method
The effeetive interest method i8 a method of caliulaling e anlised wusl ul g Binancial nstiuient and uf gllucaling
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments and receipts (including all fees and points paid or received thal form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
instrumenl, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net cz:-ying amount on initial recognition.

Pension costs

Defined benefit pian

A defined bensfit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other the~ a defined contribution plan. The Group’s net cbligation
in respect of defined benefit pension plan is calculated by estin.:ting the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefil is discounted to determine its present value,
and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The Group determines the net inlerest on the net defined benefit
liability/asset for the period by applying the discount rate used fo ineasure the defined benefil obligation at the beginning
of the annual period to the net defined benefit liability/asset.

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA which have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Group's obligations and that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits
are expected to be paid.

Re-measurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuarial gains and losses, the retum on plan assels
{excluding interest} and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest). The Group recognises them immediately
in other comprehensive income and all other expenses related i:. defined benefit plans in employee benefit expenses in
profit or loss.

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method,
When the calculation results in a benefit 1o the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions and takes into account the
adverse effect of any minimum funding reguirementis.

Following consultation with its members and trustees, the defined benefit pension scheme was closed to future accrual
with effect from 30 June 2019. Tha members of the scheme were thereafter entitled to participate in the company’s defined
contribution scheme, details of which are noted below. The value of a net defined benefit pension asset is restricted to the
sum of any amount the Group expects to recover by way of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions, The
Group are able to recognise any potential surplus in respect of the pension scheme as the pension scheme Trust Deeds
and Rules state that the Group have right to the assets once s obligations have been met.

Defined contribution plan
Contributions due in relation to defined contribution plans are recognised in operating costs in the income statement when

payable.

Current and deferrad income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax [aws enacted or subsiantively enacted at the reporting
date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject lo interpretation and establishes provisiuns where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
o be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Group's financial statements. Deferred income taxation is
not provided on the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction, other than a business combination, if at the
time of the transaction there is no effect on either accounting cr tarable profit or loss.

Deferred income taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, excepi where the

timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
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Accounting policies for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised. In particular, deferred tax assets arising from the carry forward
of unused tax losses and tax credils are recognised only to the extent that the Group has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the unused
tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised by the Group.

Deferred incuoime taxation is determined using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enaciad,
by the reporting date, and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset or liability is realised or settled.

Income tax relating o items recognised directly in equity and other comprehensive income is recognised in equity and
other compreiiensive income and not in the income statement.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax hiabilities and when they relate 10 income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settla its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Where shares are issued above par value, the proceeds in excess of par value are recorded in the share premium
account.

Dividend distribution
A dividend distribution to the Company's shareholder is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the shareholder's right to receive payment of the dividend is established. Interim dividends are
recognised when paid.

Foreign currency
Items include in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the enlity operates (the “functional currency”). The consclidated and subsidiary finar.ial
statements are presented in Sterling, which is the Company's functional currency.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty for the year ended 31 December 2022
In applying the Group's accounting policies, management have made estimates and judgements in a number of key
areas. Actua! results may, however, differ from the eslimates calculated and management believe that the following
areas present the greatest level of uncertainty.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Going concern
The Going Concarn section of the Group's Accounting policies on pages 23 to 24, indicates that due to the Group's extermal
debtl facilities maturing on 18 June 2024 and the process of refinancing not yet having commenced, the directors have
highlighted material uncertainties al this time which may cast significant doubt regarding the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

Investment properties

Investment proparties were valued at fair value by CBRE Limited. The valuations were prepared in consideration of {IFRS
and in accordance with the appraisal and valuation manual issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
Valuations were cHrried out having regard to comparable market evidence relevant to each specific property or class of
properties. In assessing fair value, current and potential future income (after deduction of non-recoverabie outgoings) has
been capitalised using yields derived from market evidence. Independent valuations were obtained for 100% of the
investment properties. Further details are available in note 8.

Pensions

Certain assumptions have been adopted for faciors that determine the valuation of the Group's liability for pension
obligations at year end and charges to the income statement. The factors have been determined in consultation with the
Group's actuary, taking into account market and economic conditions. Changes in assumptions can vary from period to
period as a result of changing conditions and other determinants which may cause increases or decreases in the valuation
of the Group’s liability for pension cbligations. The objective when setting pension scheme assumptions for future periods
is to reflect the expected actual outcomes, other than the discount rate which must be set by reference to the yield on high
auality corporate bonds with a term consistent with the obligations. Further details are available in note 17.
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Accounting policies for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued}

Other sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of gcodwill and other intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets are impaired requires an estimation of the fair value less costs
to sell of the cash-generating units to which goodwill and intangible assets have been allocated. The fair value less costs
to sell calculation requires the Company to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order o calculate present value. Sensitivity testing was performed on the fair value less
costs to sell to stress test the impairment. This included an adjustment to the discount factor by 1.4%. The directors believe
that this reasonably possible change in the key assumptions at 31 December 2022 on which the recoverable amount is
based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount 10 exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit. The Group conciuded, based on this testing and their view of the forecast cash flows, that nc impairment is necessary.
The carrying amount of goodwill at the balance sheet date was £77million (2021: £77million). The carrying amount of other
intangible assets at the balance sheet date was £47 7million (2021: £477million). Further details are available in note 7.

Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

No judgements have been made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies that have had a significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
1 Segment information

The directors consider the business has only cne segment. All of the Group’s revenue arises in the United Kingdom and
retates to continuing operations.

Year ended Year ended
£m £m

Revenue
Recurring 167 87
Nen-recurring (note 3) {1 (%)
166 86

During 2022 £imillion (2021: £1milkon) was paid out to a third party in relation to air navigation infrastructure. This has
been accounted for as a debit to revenue as the initial revenue transaction from the third party was treated as non-recurring
revenue.

2 Operating costs

Year ended Year ended
Operating costs (including non-recurring items) include the following: 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m Em
Employment costs
Wages and salaries 17 14
Social security 2 2
Pensions 2 2
Other staff costs 1 1
Employment costs 22 19
Depreciation and amertisation
Recurring
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 29 30
Amortisation of intangible assets 1 1
Other operating costs
Recurring 97 73
Total operating costs 149 123
Analysed as:
Cperating costs - recurring 119 91
Depreciation andg amortisation - recurring 30 32
Total operating costs 149 123

During 2021, the Group utilised the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme implemented by the United Kingdom government
until it ended on 30 September 2021, Employees designated as being “furloughed workers” were eligible to have belween
60% and 80% of their wage costs paid up to a maximum of betwaen £1,875 per month and £2,500 per month. The total
amount of such relief received by the Company amounted to £0.5million. There are no unfulfiled conditions or
contingencdies relating to this scheme. No amounts were received in the year ended 31 December 2022.
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AGS Airports Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31

2 OQOperating costs {continued)

Auditor remuneration

December 2022

Year ended . Year ended
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£000 £000

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the AGS Airports
Limited annual financial statements -t 37 23
Audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant o legislation 240 220
Total audit fees 277 243

Employee numbers

The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) within the Group was as follows:

Year ended . Year ended
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
Number " Number
Aberdeen 59 - 58
Clasgow 131 127
Southampton 64 60
AGS Airports Limited 85 69
Total 339 315
Directors’ and key management personnel remuneration Year ended Year ended
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£000 £000
Directors' and key management’'s remuneration
Aggregate emoluments 698 1,237
Amounts receivable under long-term incentive plans 70 161
Value of pension contributions to a defined contribution scheme 6 62
774 1,460
Number Number
Number of directors and key management who:
were members of a defined benefit pension scheme
are rmembers of a defined contribution pension scheme 2 3
Year ended Year ended
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£000 £000
Highest paid director's remuneration
Aggregate emoluments 501 603
_Amounts receivable under long-term incentive plans o 115
571 718
3 Non-recurring items
Year ended Year ended
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
Non-recurring turnover (1 (1)
) (1)

Non-recurring revenue of (£1million) (2021: £1million) was returned to a local windfarm development in relation to a
confribution received in 2019 towards the construction of a radar to provide an air traffic control mitigation solution.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

4 Finance costs

Year ended Year ended
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
Finance costs

interest on borrowings:
Bank loans and related hedging instruments (25) (20)
Interest payable to parent {21} (20)
Facility fees and other charges (1) (2)
Net finance costs (47} (42)

5 Taxation

As restated*

Year ended Year ended
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
UK Corporation tax
Current fax at 19.00% (2021: 19.00%) (1) 1
Total current tax {charge)/credit {1) 1
Deferred tax
Current year 9 5
Current year restatement re deferred tax asset (note 28) - 12
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 1 (1)
Change in UK corporate tax rate — impact on deferred 1ax - (53)
Total deferred tax credit/(charge) 10 (37)
Taxation credil.f(charge) for the year 9 (36)

The tax charge on the Group's loss before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise by applying the UK
statutory tax rate due to the following:
As restated*

Year ended Year ended

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

£m £m

Loss before tax {36) (67)
Reconciliation of the tax charge

Tax calculated at the UK statutory rate of 19.00% (2021: 19.00%) {7) {13)

Change in UK corporate tax rate (3) 53

Deferred tax not recognised - (1

Other permanent differences - (2}

Adjustments in respect of prior periods - 1 (0

Taxation credit/{charge) '
(9} 36

1 Within the £9miliion credit. £2miltron credit (2021: £16million credit) relates to deferred tax on the fair value movement on invesiment properties,
* See note 26 for details regarding the restatement.
The effective income tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2022 was 25% (2021: 53.7%).

In the 3 March 2021 Budget it was announced that the UK corporation tax rate will increase from 19% to 25% from 1 Apnil
2023. This is reflected within the above figures.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

6 Property, plant and equipment

Plant and
equipment Other  Assets inthe
Terminal Plantand - Right=of- land and course of
complexes  Airfields equipment use asset  buildings construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2021 243 201 36 1 17 14 512
Additions - - - - - (A 11
Transfer 10 completed assets 8 6 2 - - (14) -
Transfer to intangible assets (note7) - - - - - (3) {3)
Reclassifications 2 m (3} - 1 1 -
Disposals (3) - (2) - - - (5)
At 1 January 2022 248 206 33 1 18 9 515
Additions - - - - - 13 13
Transfer to compieted assets 2 3 2 - - (7) -
Disposals (2) - (1 - - - (3)
At 31 Decembar 2022 248 209 34 1 18 15 525
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 55 33 g - 17 - 114
Reclassification - 14 - - {14) - .
Charge for the year 18 8 5 - 2 - 30
Disposals (3) - (2) - - - (5)
At 1 January 2022 67 55 12 - 5 - 139
Charge for the year 12 7 4 - 6 - 29
Disposals (2) - {1) - - - {3}
At 31 December 2022 _ 77 62 15 - 11 - 165
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 171 147 18 1 7 15 360
At 31 December 2021 181 151 21 1 13 9 376

The directors have reviewed the Group's property, plant and equipment for impairment at 31 December 2022 and
concluded that no impairment is required.

Assets in the course of construction

Assets in the course of construction comprise capital expenditure on ongoing developments uncer the Group's capital
investment programme. Projects in progress at 31 December 2022 included: at Aberdeen de-icing salt siorage equipment
and ice alert system replacement, installation of electric bus chargers, purchase of baggage trolley replacement and
retention system and provision for an enhanced passenger parking area; at Glasgow Airport design works for the
construction of a new aircraft stand, development of life safety systems reptacement, airfield survey work and enhanced
terminal forecourt access. ard at Southampton the runway extension project and airfield survey work.

Security granted by the Group over its assets, inciuding property, plant and equipment, is disclosed in note 12.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

7 Intangible assets

Right to
operate Goadwill Software Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2021 ATT 77 7 561
Transfers from PPE - - K| 3
At 1 January 2022 a7T7 77 10 564
Transfers from PPE - - . -
As at 31 December 2022 477 77 10 564
Amortisation
At 1 January 2021 - - ] 5
Amcrtisation for the year - - 2 2
At 1 January 2022 - - T 7
Amortisation for the year - - 1 1
At 31 December 2022 - - 8 8
Net book value
As at 31 December 2022 477 77 2 556
As at 31 Dacember 2021 477 77 3 557

Soffware

Computer software costs principally relate to operating software. These assets are amortised over a period of 4 years.
Amortisation for the year is charged through operating costs. The assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

Right to operate and goodwill

The intangible assets were acquired on the purchase of Airports Holdings NDH1 Limited.

The right to operate relates to the airports’ permissions to levy charges for the use of their infrastructure. Right to operate
is not amortised but is subject to an annual impairment test,

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration aver the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. Goodwill is not amortised but is subject to an annual impairment test.

Goodwill and right to operate are aliocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs), identified as the individual
airports. The Group tests goodwill and right to operate for impairment at least annually.

At 31 December 2622, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of the right to operate and goodwill for CGUs and
recognised no impairment. The right to operate and goodwill attached 1o each CGU at 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Right to

operate  Goodwill Total
Cash generating unit £m £m £m
Aberdeen 208 21 229
Glasgow 268 56 325
Southampton - . -
Total 477 77 554

38



DocuSign Envelope ID: 85EE4843-0239-4B7E-88C7-6F4 149CBY55E

AGS Airports Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
7 Intanglble asseis (continued)

In considering the goodwill and right to operate for impairment the recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined as
fair value less cost 1o sell as management deem this to be the best methodology which would provide the highest valuation.
The fair value measurement hierarchy used in calculating fair value has been classified as Level 3.

Key assumptions are the forecast operational cash flows and future growth rates and the determination of appropriate
discount rates. The direclors estimate the pre-tax discount rate to be 6.4% (2021: 6.2%) which reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money. A long term growth rate of 2.0% (2021: 2.0%}) is applied, which is in line with the
UK long term GDP forecasts. Management estimate the discount rates using post tax rates that reflect current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs.

Management has prepared cash fiow forecasts for 25 years up to and including December 2047. These are based on the
latest approved Group budget for the year ending 31 December 2023, 5 year Long Term Business Plan and high level
assurrptions for subseguent years.

The Group has also performed several sensiiivity analyses of the impairment test result in relation to the key assumptions
o which the fair value less cost to sell calcufation is most sensitive, these tests included a 7.8% discount rate.

After applying each sensitivity, there was sufficient headroom between the fair value less costs to sell calculations and the
underlying book value of the assets.

As at 31 December 2022 the direclors believe that reasonably possible changes in the key assumptions, on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount o exceed the aggregate recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit. The Group concluded, on the basis of this testing and their view of forecast cash flows, that
no impairment is necessary.

8 Investment properties

£m
Valuation
At 1 January 2022 358
Loss on revaluation (6)
At 31 December 2022 352

Investment properties were valued at fair value at 31 December 2022 by CBRE Limited, Chartered Surveyors. Details of
valuations performed are provided below:

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
CBRE Limited 352 358

Investment properties, which are all freehold, were valued to fair value at 31 December 2022 by CBRE Limited, Chartered
Surveyors. Al valuations were prepared in consideration of IFRS and in accordance with the appraisal and valuation
manual issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations were carried out having regard to comparable
market evidence relevant to each specific property or ctass of properties. In assessing fair value, current and potential
future income (after deduction of non-recoverable outgoings) has been capitalised using vields derived from market
evidence relevant to each specific property or class of properties. There were no restrictions on the realisability or
remittance of income or proceeds on disposal. The fair value measurement hierarchy used in calculating fair value has
been classified as Level 3. The higher the discount rate, terminal vield and expected vacancy rate, the lower the fair value.
The higher the current and potential future income or rental growth rate, the higher the fair value.

Investment properties are let on either full repair and insuring leases, under which all outgoings are the responsibility of
the lessee, or under lenancies, where costs are recovered through a service charge levied on tenants during their period
of occupation.

investment properties sensitivity analysis
The fair value measurement hierarchy used in calculating fair value has been classified as Level 3. The higher the discount
rate, terminal yield and expected vacancy rate, the lower the fair value. The higher the current and potential future income
or rental growth rate, the higher the fair value.

39



DocuSign Envelope I0. 85EE4843-0239-4B7E-88C7-6F4149CB9S5E

AGS Airports Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
8 Investment properties (continued)

The investment propery portfolio includes car parks (for passengers and employees) and airside assets, which together
account for 70% (2021: 70%) of the fair value of the investment property portfolio at 31 December 2022. The valuation of
maintenance hangers is largety based on long term contractual terms. The following table summarises the impact on the
valuation of car parks to changes in certain assumptions:

Increasef{decrease) Increase/(decrease)in

in asset valuation asset valuation
Change in 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
assumption £m £m
Car parks — Base ravenue by +10% pa 24 24
by -10% pa (24) (24)
Car parks — Revenue growth by +1% pa 16 27
by -1% pa (15) 27)

Car parks — Operating costs
growth by+1% pa (2.2) (4.4)
by -1% pa 2.1 3.9

The sensitivity analysis above relating to the valuation of car parks has been determined based on reasonably possible
changes to the respective assumptions, holding all other assumptions constant. The methodology used in amiving at the
incremental changes shown above is consistent with that used for the vafuation at the year end.

Investment properties are let on either full repair and insuring leases, under which all outgoings are the responsibility of
the lessee, or under tenancies, where costs are recovered through a service charge levied on tenants during their period
of occupation. The property rental income earned by the Group from its investment property, amounted to £10.7million
(2021: £8 9million).

Security granted by the Group over its assets, including investmeant properties, is disclosed in noie 12.

9 Inventories

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
Consumabiles 1 1

There is no material difference between the statement of financial position value of inventories and their replacement cost.

10 Trade and other receivables

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
Current
Trade receivables 20 14
Less: provision for impairment {1) {1)
Trade receivables - net 19 i3
Corporation tax 5 5
Prepayments 4 1
Other receivables 1 3
Trade and other receivables 29 22

The fair value of trade and other receivables is not materially different from the carrying value. Further details regarding
the Group's expected credit losses, the ageing analysis of trade receivables and additional disclosure on credit
management are included note 14, Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 14 day terms. No
collateral is held as security. The Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency exchange.
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11 Cash and restricted cash

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

£m £m

Cash at bank 19 18
Debt Service Reserve Account 33 21
52 39

Total

Cash at bank eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates and is subject to interest rate risk. The fair
value of cash and cash equivalents approximates to its book value

The debt service reserve account (DSRA) is a requirement of the June 2021 refinancing and relates lo the amount of
financing costs scheduled to fall due in the next twelve months. The DSRA is reguired until June 2024,

12 Borrowings

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
Current
Interest payable on third party borrowings 3 2
Interest payable on loan payable to parent 67 486
Secured
Revolving Facility 10 10
Total current 80 58
Non-current
Secured
Senior Loan Facility 638 638
Capex Facility 109 109
Unamortised arrangement fee (2) 3)
Unsecured
Loan payable to parent 308 308
Total non-current 1,053 1,052
Total borrowings 1,133 1,110
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
Total borrowings are repayable as follows:
Amounts due for settlement within 12 months 80 58
Amounts due for settlement between one and five years 1,053 1,052
Amounts due for settlement after five years - -
1,133 1,110

The Company has £638million (2021: £638million) of drawn bank faclities (“Senior Loan Facility”) from a total facility of
£638million {2021: £638million), £109million (2021: £109million) of a drawn capital expenditure facility ("Capex facility”)
from a total facility of £109million (2021: £109million), £10million of a drawn Revolving Facility {2021: £10million drawn)
from a total facility of £10million (2021: £10million). The undrawn headroom under shareholders’ subsequent eguity

commitmeni was £30million at 31 December 2022 {2021: £30million).

Senior loan facility
The Senior Loan Facility matures in June 2024 and bears a floating interest rate based on six months SONIA plus a margin.

As pant of the Company refinancing during 2017, refinancing costs of £1 1million were incurred that have been included in
the carrying value of the Seniar Loan Facility, of which £0.1million (2021: £0.5miltion) was amortised in the year. The loan
is carried at amortised cost using efective interest rate method. Additional refinancing costs of £3.4million were incurred
as part of the 2021 refinancing, of which £1.1m was amortised in the year (2021: £0.6m).

The unamortised arrangement fee for the year as at 31 December 2022 was £1.8million (2021: £3million) and is considered

a non-cash item.
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12 Borrowings {continued)

Capex Facility

The £109million (2021: £109million) Capex Facility relates to the drawn amount al December 2022 of the £109million
{2021: £109million) facility that the Company has to finance the Group's capital expenditure requirements. The facility
matures in June 2024 and bears a floating interest rate based on six months SONIA plus a margin.

Revolving Facility

The £10million {2021: £10million) Revolving Facility reiates to the drawn amount at December 2022 of the £10million
(2021; £10miilion drawn) facility that the Company has, 1o finance its working capital requirements. The facility matures in
June 2024, is repayable at the end of each 6 months interest pericd and bears a floating interest rale based on six months
SONIA plus a margin.

On 18 June 2021 the Group negotiated amendments and extensions to its debt facility extending the maturity to June
2024,

Loans payablie fo parent

At 31 Decembar 2022, loans payable to parent relate to amounts due to the Company's parent, AGS Airports Investments
Limited, which bear an interest rate of 7% for the original loan and 4.67% for the new £20million loan (2021: 7% for the
criginal loan ard 4.67% for the new £20million ioan). During the year no loan repayments were made (2021: £nil}). - The
original loan is due for payment in 2025 and the new £20million loan has a maturity of June 2024,

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

Book value Fair vaiue’ Book value Fair value'
£m £m £m £m

Non-current
Long-term debt 747 746 747 a2
Loans payable to parent 308 323 308 329
Unamartised arrangement fee {2} - {3} -
1,053 1,069 1,052 1,071

' Fair value of borrowings is for disclosure purposes only.

Agccrued interest is included in current borrowings and is not in the carrying amount of non-current borrowings. For unlisted
borrowings, the Group establishes fair values by using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis. The
fair value of non-current borrowings which have floating interest rate is estimated to equate to their current book value,
Security and guarantees

The Company and each of its subsidiaries {other than BAA Lynton Limited} have granted security over their assets o
secure their obligations under their financing agreements.

Additional disclosures on risk management and the hedging of borrowings are included in notes 13 and 14.

13 Derivative financial instruments

Noticnal Assets Liabilities Total
£m £m £m £m
31 December 2022
Non-current interest rate swaps 637 28 - 28
31 December 2021
Non-current intarest rate swaps 637 6 - 6

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps are maintained by the Group and designated as cash flow hedges against variability in interest cash
flows on current fioating borrowings. The gains and losses deferred in equity on the cash flow hedges will be continuously
released to the income statement over the period of the hedged risk.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments (other than derivatives) comprise bank loans, borrowings from its parent, cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these instruments was to finance the acquisition of the Group and is now to
finance the Group's operating activities.

The Group does not use financial instruments for speculative purposes. The treasury function operates on a centralised
non-speculative basis. Its purpose is to identify, mitigate and hedge treasury related financial risks inherent in the Group's
business operations and funding.

The Group also enters into hedging transactions, principally interest rate swaps. The purpose of these transactions is to
manage the interest rate arising from the Group's operations and its sources of finance.

The group has now transitioned from LIBOR to SONIA in 2021,

Cash flow and interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from its borrowings. Borrowings entered into with variable interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk, Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk.

The Group's maintain a mix of fixed to floating rate debt such that a minimum of 75% of acquisition facility debt is at a fixed
rate. To manage this mix, the Group enters into interest rate swaps. These swaps may be designated to hedge underlying
debt obligations.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s fixed fioating interest rate profile, after hedging, on gross third parties debt was
84.3% (2021: 84,3%).

As at 31 December 2022, each 0.5% change in interest rates would have resulted in 'he following gain/(loss) to pre-tax
profit and equity, due to movements in the finance income, finance charge and mark-to-market valuation of derivatives,

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Income Income
statement Equity statement Equity
impact impact impact impact
£m £m £m £m
0.50% increase (1) 5 - 3
0.50% decrease 1 (5) - (3)

There is a clear economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument as the terms of the interest
rate swap malch the terms of the loan. The Group has established a hedge ratio of 1.1 as the notional value of the hedged
instrument is equal to the quantity of the hedged item. To test the hedge effectiveness, the Group uses a prospective test
which is a forward-looking evaluation of whether the changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedging item are
expected to be highly effective in offsetting the changes in the fair value or cash flows oi .he hedged item over the term of
the relationship. The hedge effectiveness test shows the hedging instruments to be highly effective.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and accounts receivable. The Group
has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group's exposure to credit related losses, in the event of non-
performance by counterparties, is mitigated by limiting exposure lo any one party or instrument and ensuring only
counterparties within defined credit risk parameters are used.

The Group maintains a split of cash and cash equivalents across market counterparties in order to mitigate counterparty
credit risk. The Group monitors the credit rating of derivative counterparties and investment activity on regular basis. As at
31 December 2022, the Group is not materially exposed to credit risk on its interest rate swaps.

Financial assets past due but not impaired comprise trade and other receivables and are disclosed below.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2022 was £ 109million (2021: £66million).
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The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before 31 December 2022 and the corresponding historica!l credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of customers to settle the receivables.

On this basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 was determined as follows:

31 December 2022 Gross carrying
amount trade Expected loss
raceivables rate Loss allowance
£m %o Em
1-30 days 18 2.8 -
31-60 days 1 6.0 -
61-80 days - 8.0 -
81-120 days 1 21.0 1
20 1
31 December 2021 Gross carrying
amount trade Expected loss
receivables rate  Loss allowance
£m % £m
4-30 days 1" 2.6 -
31-60 days 2 4.9 -
61-90 days - 6.3 -
91-120 days 1 15.0 1
14 1

The Group has recognised a loss allowance for 31 December 2022 of £1million {2021: £1million). Trade receivables are
written off where there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Liquidity risk
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities available, in respect of which all conditions precedent had been
met at 31 December:

31-Dec-2022 31-Dec-2021

Undrawn borrowing facilities £m £m
Expiring in less than one year - -
Expiring in over one and under two years 30 -
Expiring in two to five years - 30
30 30

The tables below analyse the gross undiscounted contractual cash flows on the Group's financial liabilities and net settled
derivative financial instruments as at 31 December to the contractual maturity date.

31-Dec-2022
Less than One to two Two to five Greater than
one year years years five years
£m £m £m £m
Borrowing principal payments 10 747 B -
Borrowing and derivatives interest payments 3 - - -
Trade payables 34 - - .
Capital payables 7 - - .
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14 Financial instruments {continued)

31-Dec-2021 o
Less than One to two Two to five  Greater than
ohe year years years five years
£m £m £m £m
Borrowing principal payments 10 T47 -
Borrowing and derivatives interast payments 2 - - -
Trade payables 26 - - -
Capital payables 3 - - -

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability tc continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an appropriate capital structure.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of its gearing ratio. Gearing is measured by reference to the ratio of net debt to
EBITCA.

Financial instruments by category

The Group's financial instruments as classified in the financial statements as at 31 December can be analysed under the
following categories:

31-Dec-2022
Assets Assets at fair Derivatives
value through qualifying for
Loans and income hedge
receivables statement accounting Total
I £m £m £m £m
Casin and cash equivalents 52 - - 52
Trade receivables 19 - - 19
Other receivables 10 - - 10
Derivative financial instruments - - 28 28
Total financial assets 81 - 28 109
31-Dec-2022
Liabilities Liabilities at fair Derivatives
value through qualifying for Other financial
income hedge tiabilities at
statement accounting amortised cost Total
£m £m £m £m
Borrowings - - (1,063) (1,0863)
TraJs payables - - (34) (34)
Capital payables - - (7) {7)
Total financial liabilities - - (1,104) {1,104)
31-Dec-2021
Assets Assets at fair Derivatives
value threugh qualifying for
Loans and income hedge
raceivables statemeant accounting Total
£m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 39 - - 39
Trade receivables 13 - - 13
Other receivables 8 - - B
Derivative financial instruments - - 6 6
Total financial assets 60 - 6 66
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14 Financial instruments {continued)

31-Dec-2021 o
Liabilities Liabilities at fair Derivatives

value through qualifying for Other financial

income hadge liahilities at
statement accounting amortised cost Total
£m £m £m £m
Borrowings - - (1.062) {1.082)
Trade payables - - (26) (26)
Capital payables - - (3) (3)
Total financial liabilities - - (1,091) (1,091)

At 31 December 2622, the Group had not designated any financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through the
income statement.

Fair value estimation

Financial instruments that are measured in the statemeni of financial position at fair value are classified by the following

fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, sither
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly {that is, derived from prices);

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (such as derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques, These valuation technigues maximise the use of observable market data where it is available. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are cbservable, the instrument is included in Level 2. If one or more
of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
= quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;
«  market prices for credit spreads based on counterparty's credit default swap prices and the Group's bond spread;
= the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the sstimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves; and
= other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining
financial instruments.
At 31 December 2022, all of the resulting fair value estimates of the Group financial instruments are included in Leve| 2
(2021: all included in Level 2).

15 Deferred tax

The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

£m
Al 1 January 2022 — as restated (191)
Credit to income statement 9
Tax charge to SOCI (3
31 December 2022 (187)

Deferred tax is analysed as follows:
As restated*

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

Em £m

Deferred tax liability (227) (230)
Defarred tax asset - restated 40 as
{187) (191}
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The amounts of deferred tax provided are detailed below:

Deferred tax liabilities

Initial Revaluation of
recognition investment Interest
. ofrightto. = zproperty to fair  Operational rate
operate IBAs' - value fand swaps Other Total
Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
1 January 2021 (87) (38) (44) {6) - 3 (173
(Charge) to income statement - (11} (16} (2) - (27) (56)
Credit to SOCI - - - - - {2) 2)
31 December 2021 {87) (49) {60) (8) - {26) (230)
Credit to income statemen: - 6 2 - » - 8
Charge to SOCIL - - - (7} 2 {9)
31 December 2022 {87) (43) {58) {8) {7} (24) (227}
1 Industrral building’s allowance (IBA)
Deferred tax assets
Excess of
depreciation Interest As
over capital rate restated* As restated*
allowances swaps Losses Total
Em £m £m £m
31 December 2021 — as restated (note 26) 4 1 34 39
Charge to income statemeant (4) (1) € 1
31 December 2022 - - 40 40

* See note 26 for details regarding the restatement.

Deferred tax for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 includes the impact of the substantively
enacted UK tax rate increase from 19% to 25% from 1 April 2023,

16 Trade and other payables

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

£m £m

Deferred income 4 4
Trade payables 10 7
Accruals 24 19
Capital payables 7 3
Other payables - 2
Lease liabilities . 1 1
46 36

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-day terms. The fair value of trade and other payabies is
not materially different from the carrying value.
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17 Employee benefits
Pegnsion plans
Defined benefit scheme

The companies within the AGS Airports Limited Group are participaling employers of a defined bepefit pension scheme.
The Group has applied the requirements of 1AS 19 for the year ended 31 December 2022,

The Group's defined benefit pension fund is a self-administered defined benefit scheme (the "AGS Airports Pension
Scheme” or the “Scheme”) and was closed to future accrual with effect from 30 June 2018 and was previously closed to
new employees. Following the closure of Scheme to future accrual, the members of the Scheme were entitled to participate
in the Group's defined contribution plan, details of which are noted below. The Scheme is based on a final salary
arrangement. As required by UK pension faw, a Pension Trustee's Board has been established, which together with the
Group, is responsible for governance of the Scheme. The Trustee Board is comprised of Company and employee
nominated Trustees. Employee Trustees are nominated and elected by the employees who are members of the Scheme.

The employer's contributions have been calculated based on advice received from the Scheme’s actuaries, 1SIO Group
Limited, and assumptions determined by the Trustee and agreed by the Grcup. The pension fund is subject to triennial
valuations and the defined obligation or surplus calculated twice a year by the Scheme’s actuaries.

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
Defined benefit asset 80 155
Defined benefit liability {86) {151)
Net (liability)/surplus for defined benefit obligations (see following table) (6) 4
Defined benefit Fair value of plan Net defined benefit
Movements in net defined benefit (iiability)/asset obligation assels (liability)/asset
31-Dec- 31-Dec.  31-Dec~ 3I1.Dec- 31.Dec~ 31-Dec-
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Opening balance (151) (160} 155 160 4 -
Current service cost - - - - . -
Past service credit - - - - - .
Interest (cost)fincome (3} (2) 3 2 . -
Re-measurement gains/{losses) included in SQCY:
Actuarial changes arising from changes in - 4 - - - 4
demographic assumptions
Acluarial changes arising from changes in 69 § - - 69 5
financial assumptions
Experience adjustments (4) ) - - 4 (7}
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - - (75) 2 {78) 2
Other
Benefits paid out 3 9 (3) {9) - -
Balance at 31 December (86) 151) 80 155 {8) 4
Fair value of plan assets
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
Property B 10
Bonds 1 28
Cash 7 8
Liability driven investment 31 57
Diversified growth funds - 17
Direct lending 18 20
Infrastructure funds 15 15
Total assets 80 155
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17 Cmployee benefits (continued)
All plan assets (excluding Direct Lending) have market quoted prices.

The Scheme invests in a Liability Driven Investment (“L.DI") mandate with BMO, LDl is a risk management invesiment
approach, which aims to hedge the movement of the Scheme liabilities and provides protection from adverse movements
in interest rates and inflation. The aim of the mandate is to hedge 100% of the movement in the Scheme's technical
provisions liability value.

‘The pension Scheme s | rustee (nvestment policy 1s guided by an overall objective ot achieving, over the long term, a rate
of return on the investments which is consistent with the long term assumptions made by the acluary in determining the
funding of the Scheme. Over the shorter term, the objective is to achieve a favourable return against an appropriate
benchmark retumn. All decisions about the day- ta day management of the assets have been delegated to the investment
managers via a written agreement.

Actuarial assumptions

The following are the principal actuarial assureptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

% %

Discount rate at 31 December 4.60 1.80
RFI inflation 3.15 3.25
Pansion increases in payment 2.85 3.15

The assumptions refating to longevity underlying the pension liabilities at the balance sheet date are based on standard
actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements in longevity. The assumptions are equivalent
to expecting a 60-year old to live for a number of years as follows:

Current pensioner aged 60: 25 years (male), 2" years (female)
Future retiree upon reaching 60: 27 years (male), 30 years (female)

The accounting standard requires that the discount rate used to discount the liability determined by reference to market
yields at the reporting date on high quality corporate bond investments. The currency and terms of these should be
consistent with the currency and estimated term of the post-employment obligations. The discount rate has been based
on the yield on AA rated corporate bonds of a term similar to the liabilities.

The expected rate of inflation is an important assumption for the salary growth and pension increase assumptions. A rate
of inflation is “implied” by the difference between the yields on fixed and indexdinked government bonds.

As required under the accounting standard, interest income on the plan assels is calculated by multiplying the fair value of
the plan assets by the discount rate as discussed above.
Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the assumplions set out above. The following table
summarises how the impact on the define? benefit obligation at the end of the reporting year would have
increased/decreased as a result of a change in ihe respective assumptions:

Change in
Impact on overall liabilities assumption 31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
Discount rate by 1% 18 40
Rate of inflation by 1% 13 33
Life expectancy by 1 year 2 5

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in one assumption while holding all other assumptions constant, therefore
interdependencies between assumplions are excluded. The analysis also makes no allowance for the impact of changes
in gilt and corporate bond yields on asset values.

A fult actuarial valuation of the Scheme is conducted at least every three years. The most recent full actuarial valuation
was carried out at 30 June 2021. The valuation results showed a funding level of 100% and no further funding was
required.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is 20 years (2021: 23
years},

Defined contribution plan
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The Group operates a defined contribution pension plan for all employees. The total cost of defined contribution pension
arrangements is fully expensed as employment costs. The total expense relating to the defined contribution plan in the
current year was £2.3million (2021: £2.1millicn}. In July 2017, the Group implemented Salary Sacrifice.
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18 Share capital and share premium

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21

£ £

Allocated, called up and fully paid

4 4

4 {2021: 4} ordinary shares of £1 each. 2 shares were issued during the year ended 31 December 2021 with a share

premium of £50million.

19 Hedging reserve

Share Cash flow

Premium hedge reserve

£m £m

1 January 2021 - (6}
Fair value gains recorded in equity - 14
Share issug 50 -
31 December 2021 50 8
Fair value gains recorded in equity - 15

Reclassification to retained earnings (note 20) - (2
Share issue - -
31 December 2022 50 21

Cash flow hedge reserve represents the net gains and losses on effective cash flow hedging instruments recycied to the

income statement when the hedged transaction affects profit or los:

20 Retained losses

As restated*

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
Opening balance as previously reported (59) 54
Prior year adjustment — recognition of deferred tax assel (note 26) 27 15
Opening balance as restated (32} 69
Loss for the year - restatec (27) (103)
Re-measurement of defined bensfit pension scheme (8) 2
Reclassification from hedging reserve {note 19) 2 -
31 December . (65) {32)
* See note 26 for details regarding the restatement.
21 Commitments and contingent liabilities
Non-cancellable lease commitments — Group as a lessor
Total future minimum rentals recejvable as at the year end are as follows:
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
Land and buildings Land and buildings
£m £m
Within one year 6 8
Within two to five years 16 18
After five years ) 17 21
Total 39 47

The Group uses a number of different leasing and contraclual structures depending on the type and location of the
investment property. Typically in multi-let offices and industrial premises a standard indefinite tenancy is used, which is
terminable by the tenant on three months’ notice at any time. However, it is common for the accommodation to remain let
or be quickly re-let should it be vacated. For larger, standalone premises, e.g. cargo sheds, longer leases of multiples of

three years are used.
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21 Commitments and contingent liabilities (continued}

Car rental facilities are operated under concession agreements subject to minimum guaranteed payments and the amounts
are included above. Concession contracts on the public car parks have been replaced by operator management fee
arrangements across the Group's airports.

Group commitments for property, plant and equipment
Contracted capital expenditure commitments at 31 December 2022 amount to £3.85million (2021: £0.5million).

22 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

Year ended Year ended
31-Dec-22 31-Dec-i t
Note £m £m
Operating activities
Loss before tax. (36) &7
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 4 a7 42
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 4 30 32
Pension credit
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment properties 8 6 (12)
Movement in receivables (8) {9)
Movement in payables B -
Cash generated/(used) in operations 47 (14j
Tax received/(paid) - -
Net cash genciated/(used) in operating activities 47 (1}

Reconciliation in net debt
Net debt comprised the Group's external consolidated borrowings, excluding interest accruals and net of cash and cash

equivalents.
Other
Transfers from non-
1 January non~current to cash 31 December
2022 Cash flow current changes'’ 2022
£m £m £m £m £Em
Cash and cash
equivalents 39 13 - - 52
Debt owed to parent (308) - - - (308)
External debt (754) - - {1} {755}
Total liabilities from
financing activities {1,062) - - (1) (1,063)
Net debt (1,023) 13 - {1) (1,011)
Other
Transfers from non-
1 January non-current to cash 31 December
2021 Cash flow current changes’ 2021
£m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash
equivalents 18 21 - - 39
Debt owed to parent (289) {20y - 1 {308)
External debt (756) - - 2 (754)
Total liabilities from
financing activities (1,045} _ (20) - 3 {1,062}
Net debt {1,027} 1 - 3 (1,023)

1 Relates o amortisation of issue costs.
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23 Related party transactlons

There are no material balances outstanding with related parties at 31 December 2022, except as disclosed in note 12.
24 Uitimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The parent undertaking of the largest and smallest group, which includes the Company and for which group financial
statements are prepared, is AGS Airports Holdings Limited, a Company incorporated in England and Wales.

The immediate parent undertaking of the Group is AGS Airports investments Limited, a company registered in England
and Wales.

The ultimate parent entity is AGS Airports Holdings Limited. The shareholders of AGS Airports Holdings Limited are AGS
Ventures Airports Limited (an entity managed by Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets {(Europe) Limited) {50%) and
Faero UK Holding Limited (an indirect subsidiary of Ferrovial, S.A., Spain) (50%]).

AGS Airports Pension Trustee Limited (09202431) is exempt from the requirement. to prepare individual financial
statements under section 394A of the Companies Act 2006.

25 Events after reporting date

Since the year end there has been one significant non-adjusting post balance sheet event which has impacted the Group.
On 28th January 2023 Flybe Limited entered administration. The Directors have made assessments based on a number
of likely scenarios and do not anticipate that the impact of Flybe's administration will have a significant adverse EBITDA
impact in 2023. in addition, the Direclors have instituted different measures to preserve cash and have implemented
measures to mitigate against the loss of Flybe.

26 Restatement of comparatives

Deferred Tax Assets

Historically a deferred tax asset relating to a carried forward interest disatlowance under the Corporate Interest Restriction
{CIR) Legislation was not recognised on the balance sheet of the Group. IAS 12 requires a Deferred tax asset to be
provided where it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference (i.e. the
CIR disallowed amount) can be utilised. IAS 12 clarifies that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
a deductible temporary difference can be utilised when there are sufficient taxable temporary differences. At 31 December
2022 the Group has Deferred Tax liabilities of £228m therefore £34m of deferred tax assets has been recognised and a
prior year adjustment has been recorded and disclosed in the current year accounts in respect of this,

The 31 December 2020 balance sheet has been restated to recognise the deferred tax asset of £15m, with a corresponding
reduction to the Group’s retained losses. The 31 December 2021 consolidated balance sheet has been restated to
recognise the cumulative deferred tax asset of £27m with the year to 31 December 2021 movement of £12m being reflected
in the Group'’s restated loss for the year.

As reported Resta.ement As restated
31 December 2021 31 December 2021 31 December 2021
£m £m £m

Loss for the year (115) 12 (103)

Retained losses (59) 27 (32)

Total equity (1) 27 26

Deferred Tax Liabilities (net of Deferred Tax (218) 27 (191)

Assets)

Total liabilities (1.364) 27 (1,337)
The effact of the restatement noled above on the Group's consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020 is as
follows:

As reported Restatement As restated
31 Decembear 2020 31 December 2020 31 December 2020
£m £m £m

Retained earnings 54 15 69

Total equity 48 15 63

Deferred Tax Liabilities {net of Deferred Tax {167) 15 (152)

Assets)

Total liabilities (1,282) 15 {1,267)
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31-Dac-22 31-Dec-21
Note £m £m
ASSETS
Nen-current assets
Property, piant and equipment 2 5 3
Intangible assets 2 1 2
Investments in subsidiaries 3 1.23R 1,23R
Deferred tax asset g - 4
Derivative financial instruments 7 28 6
Restricted Cash 5 33 21
1,305 1,274
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 4 18 35
Cumrent tax 19 31
Cash and cash equivalents 5 19 18
56 84
Total assets - 1,361 1,358
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings [ 1,054 1,052
Deferred tax liabilities 9 4 -
1,058 1,052
Current liabilities
Borrowings 6 80 58
Trade and other payables 8 95 90
176 148
Net current liabllities {119) {64)
Total assets less current liabilities 1,186 1,210
Total liabitities 1,233 1,200
Net assets 128 1568
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Share capital 10 - -
Share Premium 50 50
Hedging reserve 11 21 6
Retained earnings i1 57 102
Equity attributable to the owner of the Company 128 158

The Company's loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 was £45million (2021: £44million).
The notes on pages 56 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The statutory financial statements of AGS Airports Limited {Company registration number: 09201991} were approved by
the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 31 March 2023. They were signed on its behalf by:

- (47 fac

AS4BO2ED206D42D 4C0B4B4F EC8944E
Simon Geere Andrew Carlisle
Director Director
31 March 2023 31 March 2023
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Equity attributable to the owner of the Company

Share Share Hedging Retained Total
capital Premium reserve earnings
Em £m £m Em £m
Note
1 January 2021 - . (6) 146 140
Comprehensive loss:

Loss for the year 71 - - - (44) (44)
Other comprehensive income 11 - - 12 - 12
Total comprehensive income/(loss) - . 12 (44) (32)
Transactions with owner
Share issuance - 50 - - 50
Balance at 31 December 2021 - 50 6 102 156
Comprehensive loss:

Loss for the year 11 - - - {45) (45)
Other comprehensive income 11 - - 15 - 15
Total comprehensive income/{loss) - - 15 (45) {30)
Balance at 31 December 2022 - 50 21 57 128

The notes on pages 56 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements.

56



DocuSign Envelope 1D: B5EE4843-0239-4B7E-88C7-6F4149CB955E

AGS Airports Limited

Accounting policies for the year ended 31 December 2022

The principal accounting policies applied in 1he preparation of the financial statements of AGS Airports Limited are set out
below. The policies have been applied consistently to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The Company's financial statements are presented in Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest million pounds
(E£m) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of preparation
AGS Airports Limited is incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006, The address of the registered
office is given on page 1. The Company is a private company, limited by shares, and is regisiered in England and Wales.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as maodified by the revaluation of
investment in a subsidiary in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable accounting standards. They have
been prepared by the directors in accordance with FRS 101. Under FRS 101, the Company has chosen to apply the
recognition and measurement provisions of |AS 27 Separate Financial Statements.

The Company has taken advantage of certain disclosure exemptions in FRS 101 as its financial statements are included
in the publicly available consolidated financial statements of AGS Airports Limited. These disclosure exemptions relate to
the statement of cash flows, standards not yet effective, the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instrumenis: Disclosures,
the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, related party transactions and the requirement
set out in IAS 1 paragraph 3B to present comparative information in respect of certain assets. In addition, the Company
has also taken advamiage of disclosure exemption of the income statement as allowed by the Companies Act 2006.

Going concemn

The financial slatements are prepared on a going concern basis notwithstanding that the Group’s Accounting policies
indicates that due to the Group’s external debt facilities maturing on 30 June 2024 and the process of refinancing not yet
having commenced, the directors have highlighted material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt regarding the
Group's ability to continue as a going concem. The financial risks for the Company are managed at a Group level.

For further details of the Group's going concern assessment, refer 1o the Group's Going Concern section of the Group’s
Accounting Policies on pages 23 1o 24.

Adoption of new and revised IFRSs

During the year, the Company adopted the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board that are mandatorily effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Their adoption
has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

The following amendments, although relevant to the Company, have no impact on the Company’s results:

+«  Amendmenis o IAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment): The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, Instead,
an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profil or loss.

+  Amendments to 1AS 37 {(Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets); Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract. The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract', Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremenlal costs of fulfilling that
conlract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts {an example would be the sllocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

s Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards - The amendments include
consequential amendments o affected standards so that they refer to the new Framework.

The following amendments are not applicable to the Company:
« Amendments to IFRS 5: Applying IFRS 8 ‘Financial Instruments' with IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts’
*  Amendmenis to IFRS 16 Leases: COVID-18-Related Rent Concessions
»  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost and reviewed for impairment if there are any indications that the carrying
value may not be recoverable. Reversals are recognised where there is a favourable change in the economic assumptions
in the period since the provision was made. Dividends, impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses are
recognised in the income statement.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. Where the asset does not generate cash flows independent of other assets, the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is estimated. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
the cash-generating unit is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

An assessment is made at sach reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment {0ss is reversed only if there has been a chaige in the estimates used to determineg the
assel’'s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the
assel is increased to its recoverable amount. Thal increased amount cannot e«ceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognisad for the asset in prior years. After such a
reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate ihe asset's revised carrying amount, less any
residual value, on a straight line basis over its remaining useful life.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less loss allowance.

Trade receivables ECLs are calculated using an approach which reflects the previous history of credit losses on the
financial assets, applying different provision levels based on the age of the receivable. For other receivables, where there
is a history of no credit losses, and where this is expected to persist into the future, no ECL is recognised.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair vaiue, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless pant of a fair value hedge relationship. Any differerce batween the amount initially recognised (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the profit and loss account over the pericd of the borrowings
using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings being novated or cancelled and re-issued, with a substantial
modification of the terms, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability, with any resulting gain or loss recognised in the profit and loss account.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequenty re-
measured at their fair value.

The method of recagnising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if 50, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Company designates certain derivatives as either:

» fair value hedges, where they hedge exposure to changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability; or

= cash flow hedges, where they hedge exposure to varability in cash flows that are either attributable to a particular risk
associated with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset, liability or forecasted transaction.

The Company documents at the inception of the transaclion the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The
Company also documents, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, its assessment of whether the derivatives
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items

The fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity is more
than 12 months and as a current asset or liability where it is less than 12 months. Derivatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting and which are not held for trading purposes are classified based on their maturity.

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged
risk. If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged
itern for which the effective interest rate methed is used is amortised in the income statement over the period to maturity.
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Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in equity and the SOCI. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement. Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the periods when the hedged
item affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equily at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in the incomo staterment. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected 1o occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

Derivatives at fair value through the income statement
Vihere certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in their fair valug are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

When derivatives are designated in a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge, the net interast payable or receivable on those
derivatives is recorded net of the interest on the underlying hedged item in the income statement. Vwhien derivatives are
rot in a hedge relationship the fair value changes on these derivatives are recognised within fair value gains/(losses) on
financial instruments in the income statement, The interest payable and receivable on those derivatives are recorded at
their gross amounts in finance costs and finance income in the income statement.

Accounting for changes in credit risk

Accounting standards require that the fair value of financial instruments reflects their credit quality, and also changes in
credit quality where there is evidence that this has occurred. Where material, the credit risk associated with the Company's
derivatives is reflected in its derivative valuations. This credit factor is adjusted over time to reflect the reducing tenor of
the instrument and is updated where the credit associated with the derivative has clearly changed based on market
transaction and prices.

Effective interest method
The effactive intersst method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrumer: and of allocating
interest income or Interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments and receipts (including all fees and paints paid or received that form an integral pan of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Cash and cash equivalents
Casb and cash equivalents comprisas cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand, less overdrafts payable on
demand when a right to offset exists.

Amounts owned to Group undertakings

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are
subsequently stated at amaortised cost. Any difference between the amount initially recognised (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the profit and loss account over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interast method.

Current and deferred taxation
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deisrred income taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Company's financial statements. Deferred income taxation
is not provided on the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction, other than a business combination, if at the
time of the transaction there is no effect on either accounting or laxable profit or loss.

Deferred income taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Company and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foraseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recoghised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. In particular, deferred tax assets arising from the carry forward of unused
tax losses and tax credits are recognised only 1o the extent that the Company has sufficient taxable temporary differences
or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be avaitable against which the unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised by the Company.
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Current and deferred taxation (continued)
Deferred income taxation is determined using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted, by
the reporting date, and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset or liability is realised or settled.

Income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity and other comprehensive income is recognised in equity and
other comprehensive income and not in the income statement.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current {ax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Where shares are issued above par value, the proceeds in excess of par value are recorded in the share premium account.

Dividend distribution
A dividend distribution to the Company's shareholder is recognised as a liability in the Company's financial statements in
the period in which the shareholder's right to receive payment of the dividend is established Interim dividends are
recognised when paid.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty for the year endsd 31 December 2022
In the application of the Company's accounting policies the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amourt of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered lo be
relevant, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recoghised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affecis both current and future periods.

Going concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis notwithstanding that the Group's Accounting policies
indicates that due to the Group's external debt facilities maturing on 18 June 2024 and the process of refinancing not yet
having commenced, the directors have highlighted maternial uncertainties which may cast significant doubt regarding the
Group's ability to conlinue as a going concern, The financial risks for the Company are managed at a Group level.

For further details of the Group’s going concern assessment, refer to the Group's Going Concern section of the Group’s
Accounting Policies on pages 23 to 24,
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1 Company loss for the year

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present ifs own profit and loss
account or statement of other comprehensive income for the year. The loss attributable to the Company is disclosed in the
footnote to the Company's statemant of financial position.

The auditor's remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in nole 12.

2 Intangihla assete and property, plant and cquipment

Plant and
Intangible assets equipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2022 8 8 16
Additions - 3 3
At 31 December 2022 8 11 19
Depreciation
At 1 January 2022 6 5 11
Charge for the year 1 1 2
At 31 December 2022 7 6 13
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 1 5 6
At 31 December 2021 2 3 5
3 Investments in subsidiaries
Em
Cost at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 1,238
Class of
Registered shares
Company Registered Office number held Ownership
Airport Holdings NDHY Limited 1 Park Row, Leeds, L51 5AB 06408392 Qrdinary 100%
Glasgow Airport Limited St Andrews Drive, Paisley, PA3 28W SC096624 Ordinary 100%
Aberdeen |nternational Airport Limited Dyce, Aberdeen, AB21 7DU SC096622 Ordinary 100%
Southampton International Airport Limited  Wide Lane, Southampton, S018 2NL 02431858 Ordinary 100%
BAA Lynton Limited 1 Park Row. Leeds, LS1 5AB 03330278 Ordinary 100%
AGS Airports Pension Trustees Limited 1 Park Row, Leeds, LS1 5AB 09202431 Ordinary 100%

The directors have reviewed the Company’s investments for impairment at 31 December 2022 and conciuded that no
impairment is required.

All of the subsidiaries have ordinary shares, each with a nominal value of £1. All the subsidtaries are directly held and
wholly owned by Airport Holdings NDH1 Limited, except AGS Airports Pension Trustees Limited which is directly held by
the Company. All of the subsidiaties are incorporated in Great Britain and registered in Scotland, with the exception of
Airport Holdings NDH1 Limited, Southampton International Airport Limited, BAA Lynton Limited and AGS Airports Pension
Trustees Limited, which are registered in England and Wales.
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4 Trade and other receivables

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m

Current
Inter-group receijvables 16 33
Other receivables 2 2
Total 18 35

5 Cash and restricted cash

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
Cash at bank 19 18
Dabt Service Reserve Account 33 21
Totai 52 35

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates and is subject to interest rate risk. The fair
value of cash and cash equivalents approximates to its book value. The debt service reserve account (DSRA) is a
requirement of the June 2021 refinancing and relates to the amount of financing costs scheduled to fall due in the next
twelve months, The DSRA is required until June 2024,

& Borrowings

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m
Current
Interest payable on third parly borrowings 3 2
Interest payable on loan payable io parent &7 46
Secured
Revolving Facility 10 10
Total current 80 58
Non-current
Secured
Senior Loan Facility 638 638
Capex Facility 108 109
Unamortised arrangement fee {2} (3)
Unsecured
Loans payable to parent 309 308
Total non-current 1,054 1,052
Total borrowings 1,134 1,110

The Company has £638million (2021: £638million} of drawn bank facilities ("Senior Loan Facility”) from a total facility of
£638million (2021: £638million), £109million {2021: £109million) of a drawn capital expenditure facility {(*Capex facility"}
from a total facility of £109million (2021: £109million), £10million of a drawn Revolving Facility (2021: £10million drawn)
from a total facility of £10million (2021: £10million), The undrawn headroom under shareholders' subsequent equity
commitment was £30million at 31 December 2022 (2021: £30million).

Senior loan facility
The Senior Loan Facility matures in June 2024 and bears a floating interest rate based on six months SONIA plus a margin.

As part of the Company refinancing during 2017, refinancing costs of £11million were incurred that have been included in
the carrying value of the Senior Loan Facility, of which £0.1million (2021: £0.5million) was amortised in the year. The loan
is carried at amortised cost using effective interest rate method. Additional refinancing costs of £3.4million were incurred
as part of the 2021 refinancing, of which £1.1m was amortised in the year (2021: £0.6m).

The unamortised arrangement fee for the year as at 31 December 2022 was £1.8million {2021: £3million) and is considered
a non-cash item.
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6 Borrowings (continued)

Capex Facility

The £109million {2021: £109million} Capex Facility relates to the drawn amount at December 2022 of the £109million
(2021: £109million) facility that the Company has to finance the Group's capital expenditure requirements. The facility
matures in June 2024 and bears a floating interest rate based on six months SONIA plus a margin.

Revolving Facility

The £10million (2021: £10million) Revulving Facllity relates 1o the drawn amount at December 2022 of the £10million
(2021: £10million drawn) facility that the Company has, to finance its working capital requirements. The facility matures in
June 2024, is repayable at the end of each & months interest period and bears a floating interest rate based on six months
SONIA plus a margin.

On 18 June 2021 the Group negotiated amendments and extensions to its debt facility exiending the maturity to June
2024.

Loans payable to parent

At 31 December 2022, loans payable to parent relate to amounts due to the Company’s parent, AGS Airports Investments
Limited, which bear an interest rate of 7% for the original loan and 4.67% for the new £20million loan {(2021: 7% for the
original loan and 4.67% for the new £20millior; loan). During the year no loan repayments were made (2021: £nil). The
original loan is due for payment in 2025 and the new £20million loan has a maturity of June 2024.

7 Derivative financial instruments

Notional Assets Liabilities Total
£m £m £em £m
31 December 2022
Non-currant interest rate swaps 637 28 - 28
31 December 2021
Non-current inlerest rate swaps 637 6 - 6

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps are maintained by the Company and designated as cash flow hedges against variability in interest cash
fiows on current floating borrowings, The gains and losses deferred in equity on the cash flow hedges will be continuously
released to the profit and loss over the period of the hedged risk.

8 Trade and other payables

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£m £m

Current
Accruals 6 5
Trade payables 3 2
Capital payables 2 -
Intra-group payables 84 83
95 90

Amounts owed to Group undertakings mainty relate to cash sweeps between the Company and its subsidiaries. As at
31 December 2022, the balance accrued interest at a rate of 7% per annum {2021: 7%).
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9 Taxation

The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

£m
At 1 January 2022 4
Debit to income statement (&)}
Tax debited lo equity o
Deferred tax at 31 December 2022 (4)

The Company has an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £24million (2021:; £17million) in relation to a carried forward
interest disaliowance under the Corporate Interest Restriction l.egislation.

A UK corporation tax rate of 19% (effective 1 April 2020) was substantively enacted on 17 March 2020. In the 3 March

2021 Budget it was announced that the UK tax rate will increase to 25% from 1 April 2023. This is reflected within the
above figures.

10 Share capital

31-Dec-22 31-Dec-21
£ £
Allccated, called up and fully paid 4 4

4 (2021: 4) ordinary shares of £1.00 each. 2 shares were issued during the year ended 31 December 2021.

11 Reserves

Hr:‘;g:g Retained earnings

£m £m

1 January 2021 (6) 146
Fair value gains recorded in equity 12 _
Loss for the year - (44)
Dividend paid - -
31 Decamber 2021 [ 102
Fair value gains/(losses) recorded in equity 15 -
Loss for the year - {45)
31 December 2022 21 57

12 Auditor remuneration
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company's audit fee was £37,000 {2021: £23,000).
13 Employee information and directors’ remuneration

Details of the Company's employee numbers and directars' remuneration for the year are provided in note 2 of the AGS
Airports Limited consolidated financial statements,

14 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Contracted capital expenditure cormmitments at 31 December 2022 amount to £3.2million (2021: Enil).
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15 Ultimate parent undertaking and contrelling party

The parent undertaking of the largest and smallest group, which includes the Company and for which group financial
statements are prepared, is AGS Airports Holdings Limited, a Company incorporated in England and Wales and has its
registered office at 1 Park Row, Leeds, LS1 5AB,

The immediate parent undertaking of the Company is AGS Airports Investments Limited, a company registered in England
and Wales and has Hts registered office at 1 Park Row, Leeds, LS1 5AB.

Copies of their financial slatements can be obtained from the Registrar of Companies for England and Wales, Companies
House, Crown Way, Cardiff, CF14 3UZ.

The ultimate parent entity is AGS Airports Holdings Limited. The shareholders of AGS Airports Holdings Limited are AGS

Ventures Airports Limited {an entity managed by Macquarie Infrastructure and Rea! Assets {Eurcpe) Limited) {50%) and
Faero UK Holding Limited (an indirect subsidiary of Ferrovial, S.A., Spain) (50%}).
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